Downtown Investment Authority
‘ Hybrid Virtual In-Person Meeting
JAX Friday, June 28th, 2024

DOWNTOWN 3:30M

INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

MEMBERS:
Jim Citrano, Board Chair Patrick Krechowski, Esq.
Braxton Gillam, Esq. Micah Heavener
Carol Worsham Melinda Powers, Esq.
Sondra Fetner, Esq. Scott Wohlers

R CALL TO ORDER

. PUBLIC COMMENTS

. COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
A. Form 8B: Voting Conflict Disclosures
B. May 15th, 2024, Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes
Approval

C. Consent Agenda
i. Resolution 2024-06-01 RISE Doro (scrivener’s error)
ii. Resolution 2024-06-02 Northbank FY 23-24 Amended Budget
iii. Resolution 2024-06-03 Southside FY 23-24 Amended Budget
iv. Resolution 2024-06-06 Northbank FY 23-24 Amended Budget — Additional

Revenue
v. Resolution 2024-06-07 Northbank FY 23-24 MPS BT
vi. Resolution 2024-06-08 Northbank FY 23-24 Lynch Principal & Interest BT
vii. Resolution 2024-06-09 Northbank FY 23-24 Carling Principal & Interest BT
viii. Resolution 2024-06-10 Southside FY 23-24 Strand BT
ix. Resolution 2024-06-05 Southside FY 24-25 Revised Proposed Budget
(scrivener’s error)

x. Resolution 2024-06-12 45 W Bay Street Facade Grant

D. Resolution 2024-06-04 Northbank FY 24-25 Revised Proposed Budget

E. Resolution 2024-06-13 Laura Street Trio (placeholder — resolution to be

provided if and when available)

Iv. DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
A. May 15th, 2024, Downtown Investment Authority Board Meeting Minutes
Approval
B. Resolution 2024-06-11 Sip & Stroll Contribution
C. Resolution 2024-06-14 Cathedral District Jax Contribution

V. OLD BUSINESS



VI.

VII.

VIII.

Downtown Investment Authority June 2024 Board Meeting Agenda

NEW BUSINESS

CEO INFORMATIONAL BRIEFING
A. CEO Monthly Update

CHAIRMAN REPORT
OTHER MATTERS TO BE ADDED AT THE DISCRETION OF THE CHAIR

ADJOURN

PHYSICAL LOCATION

Jacksonville Public Library-Main Library/Downtown
303 North Laura Street

Multipurpose Room (located in the Conference Center)
Jacksonville, Florida 32202

VIRTUAL LOCATION
Interested persons desiring to attend this meeting virtually can do so via Zoom (including by
computer or telephone) using the following meeting access information:

Join Zoom Webinar
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87990789951?pwd=6D95Mq0jlJ1V4PLG90oxpc7UWGLTOSL.1

Webinar ID: 879 9078 9951
Passcode: 062932

One tap mobile
+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)

+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/keluzyhyuj



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87990789951?pwd=6D95Mq0jlJ1V4PLG9oxpc7UWGLTOSL.1
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/keJuzyhyuj

TAB III.B

MAY 15TH, 2024 COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING MINUTES
APPROVAL




v A Community Redevelopment Agency
, | ¥y ‘ Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting
v JAX Wednesday, May 15th, 2024, 2:00 p.m.

INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Community Redevelopment Agency Hybrid Meeting
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES

DIA Board Members (BM): Jim Citrano, Board Chair; Sondra Fetner, Esq.; Patrick Krechowski,
Esq.; Micah Heavener; Melinda Powers, Esq.; Scott Wohlers, Braxton Gillam, Esq.; Carol
Worsham

Mayor’s Office: None

Council Members: None

DIA Staff: Lori Boyer, Chief Executive Officer; Steve Kelley, Director of Downtown Real Estate
and Development; Guy Parola, Director of Operations; Allan DeVault, Project Manager; Ava Hill,
Administrative Assistant

Office of General Counsel: John Sawyer, Esq.

I. CALLTO ORDER

The CRA meeting was called to order at 2:02 pm by Jim Citrano, Board Chair. This was followed
by the Pledge of Allegiance and introductions.

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS
The following people made in-person public comments, made public comments virtually through
Zoom, or provided comments that were read into the record by DIA Staff. Note: the subject matter

of the comment(s) indicated to the right of each person:

Katherine Mosley Supports Lori Boyer as CEO
John Nooney Parking Issues

Board Chair Citrano welcomed Kaylyn Mira as an intern for DIA and suggested she spend a lot of
time with Steve Kelly.

III.COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
A. FORM 8B: VOTING CONFLICT DISCLOSURES

Board Chair Citrano declared a voting conflict for Resolution 2024-05-02 Players Grille
and advised that he would abstain from the vote.

PAGE 1 OF 2



O\ AA Community Redevelopment Agency
‘ Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting
’ JAX Wednesday, May 15th, 2024, 2:00 p.m.

INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

B. April 17th, 2024, COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING
MINUTES APPROVAL

Board Chair Citrano called for a motion to approve the meeting minutes as presented.

Motion: Member Worsham motioned to approve the meeting minutes.
Second: Member Heavener seconded the motion.

Vote: Aye: 8 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY  8-0-0

C. CONSENT AGENDA

Board Chair Citrano called for a vote on the consent agenda which included Resolutions
2024-05-03, 04, and 05.

Motion: Member Gillam motioned to approve the consent agenda.
Second: Member Worsham seconded the motion.

Seeing no discussion, Board Chair Citrano called for a vote on the consent agenda.
Member Wohlers thanked DIA staff for negotiating the Related deal for the city. He
mentioned that the ratio is far above the desired 1.1 and that it’s a great deal for the
Southbank in a premier location.

Vote: Aye: 8 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY  8-0-0

D. RESOLUTION 2024-05-02 PLAYERS GRILLE

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”)
ACTING AS THE NORTHBANK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
(“GRANTOR”) APPROVING THE AWARD OF A RETAIL ENHANCEMENT
PROGRAM GRANT TO PLAYERS GROUP, LLC (“PLAYERS GRILLE” OR
“GRANTEE”), TO ESTABLISH A FOOD AND BEVERAGE BUSINESS IN THE
HOME2SUITES HOTEL LOCATED AT 600 PARK STREET JACKSONVILLE FL
32204 WHERE APPLICANT MAINTAINS A LEASE FEE INTEREST;
AUTHORIZING THE CEO OF THE DIA TO NEGOTIATE A GRANT AGREEMENT

PAGE 2 OF 2



v A Community Redevelopment Agency
, | ¥y ‘ Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting
v JAX Wednesday, May 15th, 2024, 2:00 p.m.

INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

(FORGIVABLE LOAN SECURED BY A NOTE); AUTHORIZING THE DIA CEO TO
EXECUTE SUCH AGREEMENTS; AND FINDING THAT THE DEVELOPMENT
PLAN IS CONSISTENT WITH THE DIA’S BUSINESS INVESTMENT AND
DEVELOPMENT PLAN, INCLUDING THE NORTHBANK CRA PLAN (“BID
PLAN”) AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Mr. Allan DeVault explained that the resolution was not on the consent agenda only because
of a quorum issue during the committee meeting and that it did pass 2-0-0. He provided a
brief history of the Players Group, their locations, and commitment to the City of
Jacksonville. Mr. Allan provided a brief summary of the staff report, construction budget,
scoring matrix, and maximum funding.

Motion: Member Gillam motioned to approve the resolution.
Seconded: = Member Worsham seconded the motion.

Board Chair Citrano opened the floor for discussion.

Board Member Gillam expressed that this was the type of project the city needs more of
and that he was in favor of it.

Board Member Worsham echoed Member Gillam’s comments and expressed that she was
happy to see the retail enhancement grant being used.

Board Member Krechowski also expressed that he was happy to see the project, a local
developer and owner, and then shared that he was in favor of the project.

Board Member Fetner mentioned that this project is a big win for the area and that this is
excellent work on behalf of DIA and everyone involved.

Board Member Powers mentioned being at the ribbon cutting and stated that it was
delightful. She finished that she was in favor of the project.

Board Chair Citrano reiterated that he would not vote on the resolution but that he was
excited about the project and future projects from the applicant.

Board Chair Citrano called for a vote on the resolution.
Vote: Aye:7 Nay: 0 Abstain: 1

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY  7-0-1

PAGE 3 OF 5



o . Community Redevelopment Agency
‘ Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting
v JAX Wednesday, May 15th, 2024, 2:00 p.m.

INVEST‘MENT AUTHORITY

E. RESOLUTION 2024-05-06 ONE RIVERSIDE

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”)
AUTHORIZING REVISIONS TO, AND RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCILAPPROVAL
OF AMENDMENTS TO THE RESTAURANT IMPROVEMENTS DEFINTION, THE
PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE AND THE DURATION OF THE PHASE 1 RETAIL REV
GRANT AND OTHER ASSOCIATED TERMS OF THE REDEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY, DIA, AND FUQUA ACQUISITIONS, LLC, DATED
DECEMBER 20, 2021 (THE “RDA”) AS ASSIGNED TO FUQUA BCDC ONE RIVERSIDE
PROJECT OWNER, LLC, (THE “DEVELOPER”) AND AS MODIFIED BY
AMENDMENT ONE THERETO DATED OCTOBER, 2022; THE TERMS OF THE
SECOND AMENDMENT SHALL INCLUDE, AMONG SUCH OTHER ITEMS AS MAY
BE APPROVED BY CITY COUNCIL, THE MODIFICATIONS IDENTIFIED IN THE
TERM SHEET ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT A, WITH ALL OTHER TERMS AND
CONDITIONS OF THE RDA AS AMENDED REMAINING UNCHANGED EXCEPT AS
MAY BE MODIFIED BY ANY SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY AND
DEVLOPER; AUTHORIZING THE CEO OF THE DIA TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY
ACTION TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

CEO Boyer explained that the resolution went to the Strategic Implementation Committee
but it had an amendment. She explained that there were three changes to the
redevelopment agreement that had already been executed and then described the changes.
CEO Boyer explained that the amendment was to delete sub-section 5 and then renumber
sub-section 6.

Board Chair Citrano called for a motion on the amendment.

Motion: Member Worsham motioned to approve the resolution as presented.
Seconded: = Member Heavener seconded the motion.

Board Chair Citrano opened the floor for discussion.

Board Member Gillam mentioned that there was a dispute with the developer over timing
and asked if the dispute was resolved. CEO Boyer responded no and that the disputes are
being resolved. She mentioned that they are a part of a settlement agreement negotiated
by OGC that is nearly in final form. Member Gillam provided the background for the
project and explained that he can’t see moving forward with the project until the dispute is
settled.

John Sawyer, Office of General Counsel, explained that the settlement agreement has been
negotiated and agreed to. He added that the settlement and amended documents would be
in the same legislation that would be filed with city council the following week and

PAGE 4 OF 5



- Community Redevelopment Agency
, )y : ‘ Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting
v JAX Wednesday, May 15th, 2024, 2:00 p.m.

INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

hopefully would be approved on the same track. He concluded that the settlement
agreement would resolve the disputes between the parties.

Lori Boyer encouraged the Board to offer an amendment that the resolution is only
approved contingent on the approval of the settlement agreement, but then also approve
only the restaurant portion of the resolution that is already under construction.

Board Member Gillam withdrew his motion for resolution.

Steve Diebenow agreed with CEO Boyer’s recommendations to amend the resolution and
mentioned that they cannot slow the project down or it would make problems worse.

Motion: Member Gillam motioned to amend the resolution to modify the
requirements relative to the restaurant and approval of the rest of the
resolution be contingent on settlement approval.

Seconded: = Member Worsham seconded the motion.

Board Chair Citrano called for a vote on the amendment to the resolution.
Vote: Aye: 8 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY  8-0-0
Board Chair Citrano called for a vote on the amended resolution.
Vote: Aye: 8 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY  8-0-0
IV.ADJOURNMENT

Seeing there were no further questions and comments, Board Chair Citrano adjourned the CRA
meeting at 2:38 PM.

The written minutes for this meeting are only an overview of what was discussed. For verbatim

comments of this meeting, a recording is available upon request. Please contact Ava Hill at
avah@coj.net to acquire a recording of the meeting.

PAGE 5 OF 5


mailto:avah@coj.net

TAB III.C.i
RESOLUTION 2024-06-01 RISE DORO




RESOLUTION 2024-06-01

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY ACTING
AS THE NORTHBANK COMBINED COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT
AGENCY AUTHORIZING A MULTIFAMILY HOUSING RECAPTURE
ENHANCED VALUE GRANT (“REV GRANT”) BETWEEN THE DOWNTOWN
INVESTMENT AUTHORITY AND JACKSONVILLE PROPERTIES I, LLC
(“DEVELOPER”); AND RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF A
EMERGENCY RAPID RESPONSE GRANT, AND A WORKFORCE HOUSING
COMPLETION GRANT, FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF A MIXED-INCOME,
MIXED-USE PROPERTY KNOWN AS RISE DORO IN THE DOWNTOWN
NORTHBANK COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA; AUTHORIZING THE
CEO OF THE DIA TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTION TO EFFECTUATE
THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION INCLUDING THE FILING OF
LEGISLATION; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Jacksonville Properties I, LLC, a single purpose entity created by RISE: a Real Estate
Company (“RISE” or “Developer”) for the purposes of the subject development has ownership of real estate
parcels located principally at 930 Adams St E at the intersection with A. Philip Randolph Blvd, within the
Sports and Entertainment District of the Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area through
a ground-lease investor; and

WHEREAS, Developer was nearing completion on a mixed-use, residential apartment complex
on the site located principally at 102 & 128 A. Philip Randolph Blvd before the development was largely
destroyed by a tragic fire in January 2024, and

WHEREAS, Developer responded quickly to damage caused by the fire and initiated rapid
demolition of the affected structure to minimize risk to the public and to minimize business disruption to
the surrounding business community, stadiums, arena, and public parking structures, and incurred
additional cost in taking the quick response measures; and

WHEREAS, Developer is eager to move forward with redevelopment of the mixed-use rental
apartment facility proposed to include 247 residential rental units and more than 7,400 square feet of retail
space, despite significantly higher construction and financing costs; and

WHEREAS, Developer intends to incorporate 85 units of workforce housing into the development
plans to acknowledge the need for mixed-income housing across Jacksonville for the benefit of local
workers; and

WHEREAS, collectively the project will result in an investment of approximately $79.1 million
for the construction of the mixed-use complex and associated improvements, an increase of more than
57.2% from the original construction budget; and

WHEREAS, the increased private capital investment totaling $79.1 million in real property will
increase the county ad valorem tax base over the useful life of the assets and meets the existing CRA Plan
Multi-family REV Grant guidelines; and



Resolution 2024-06-01
Page 2

WHEREAS, to assist RISE, or its related single purpose entity, to increase the amount of
residential units in Jacksonville, including rent restricted workforce housing units, will require financial
assistance from the Downtown Investment Authority and the City of Jacksonville; and

WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) is authorized per section 55.108
Economic Development of the City Ordinance Code, to utilize the Tax Increment Finance District Trust
Funds to foster the redevelopment of the Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area; and

WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) is authorized per section 55.108(8)-
(9)(b) Economic Development of the City Ordinance Code, to implement the BID Plan, grant final approval
of redevelopment agreements, without further action of Council, in furtherance of the BID Plan; and

WHEREAS, DIA proposes a REV Grant up to 75% of the incremental increase in the county
portion of ad valorem taxes for twenty (20) years generated from their proposed private capital investment
of up to $79.1 million with maximum indebtedness not to exceed $11,450,000, funded through the
Northside Tax Increment Finance District Trust Fund consistent with the DIA Multifamily REV Grant
guidelines set forth in the BID Plan; and

WHEREAS, the proposed REV Grant, City of Jacksonville Workforce Housing Completion
Grant, and Emergency Rapid Response Grant are material factors in assisting Developer to redevelop the
property from its blighted state and make a positive contribution to the market rate housing, workforce
housing, and retail/food and beverage operations goals established for Downtown Jacksonville in
accordance with the DIA BID Plan.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority:

Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are
incorporated herein by this reference.

Section 2. The DIA hereby approves a Multifamily Housing REV Grant of 75% of the
incremental increase in the county portion of ad valorem taxes for twenty (20) years generated from the
proposed private capital investment of $79.1 million with maximum indebtedness not to exceed
$11,450,000, subject to the terms and conditions as provided in the Term Sheet attached hereto as Exhibit
A.

Section 3. The DIA recommends that City Council adopt an ordinance that authorizes a
Redevelopment Agreement that includes a Workforce Housing Completion Grant totaling $3,000,000, and
an Emergency Rapid Response Grant totaling $1,000,000 subject to the terms and conditions as provided
in the Term Sheet attached hereto as Exhibit A.

Section 4. The DIA hereby authorizes its CEO to negotiate a Redevelopment Agreement
authorizing the REV Grant as described above in accordance with the term sheet attached as Exhibit A.

Section 5. The DIA hereby authorizes its CEO to take all necessary actions to effectuate the
purposes of this Resolution, including but not limited to the filing of legislation and execution of a



Resolution 2024-06-01
Page 3

Redevelopment Agreement, or functional equivalents, providing that such actions incorporate, at a
minimum, the terms and conditions contained in Exhibit A to this Resolution 2024-06-14.

Section 6. This Resolution, 2024-06-14, shall become effective on the date it is signed by the
Chair of the DIA Board.

WITNESS: DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

James Citrano, Chairman Date

VOTE: In Favor: Opposed: Abstained:



Resolution 2024-06-01

Page 4
Exhibit A:
TERM SHEET
The RISE-Doro
DIA Multifamily REV Grant $11,450,000
City of Jacksonville - Workforce Housing Completion Grant $3,000,000
City of Jacksonville - Emergency Rapid Response Grant $1,000,000

Project: The Doro, a 247-unit multifamily development located at 102 A. Philip Randolph Blvd.
in the Sports and Entertainment District of the Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment
Avrea.

Developer/Applicant: Jacksonville Properties I, LLC, a single-asset entity created for this
development by RISE: A Real Estate Company based in Jacksonville, Florida (“Developer”);
however, the property is being developed under a ground lease with iStar, Inc. d/b/a 102 A Philip
Randolph Blvd Ground Owner LLC who is the property owner for tax and capitalization purposes
but is not a co-applicant.

Total Development Costs (estimate): $79,123,500
Underwritten Development Costs Used for Grant Calculation: $68,321,400
Equity (proposed): $29,531,683

(37.3% of TDC)

City of Jacksonville Funding: Not more than $15,450,000 (through the City of Jacksonville
Downtown Investment Authority), as follows:

REV Grant: DIA Market Rate Multi-Family Housing REV Grant for 75% of the ad
valorem tax increment generated by the project for a period of Twenty (20) years. The
maximum REV grant indebtedness will not exceed $11,450,000 and will be paid annually
beginning the first year of taxation following completion based upon the incremental
increase in the Duval County Operating Millage ad valorem taxes collected.

Workforce Housing Completion Grant: City of Jacksonville to provide a grant in the
amount of $3,000,000 for the commitment from the Developer to provide Workforce
Housing to include not less than:

e 15— 2-bedroom units at $60,000 per unit
e 70— 1-bedroom units at $30,000 per unit

Rent maximums will follow limits set forth by the Florida Housing Finance Corporation
(FHFC) for 120% Area Median Income (AMI) for Jacksonville, Duval County, Florida as
may be adjusted annually. But in accordance with FHFC rules, such rents do not require



Resolution 2024-06-01
Page 5

downward adjustment for existing tenants in any year where AMI levels fall, while rents
for any new resident tenant will be established at the prevailing rate for any year.

A Land Use Restrictive Agreement (LURA) will be recorded to require adherence with
maximum rents to remain in place for a period of not less than 30-years.

The Workforce Housing Completion Grant will be paid upon achieving Substantial
Completion of the project and recording of the LURA.

Emergency Rapid Response Grant: City of Jacksonville to provide a grant in the amount
of in the amount of $1,000,000 in recognition and contribution towards costs incurred in
the extraordinary efforts on part of the Developer to responded quickly to the fire and the
rapid demolition of the affected structure to minimize risk to the public and to minimize
business disruption to the surrounding business community, stadiums, arena, and public
parking structures, and incurred additional cost in taking the quick response measures.

The Emergency Rapid Response Grant will be earned by the Developer and paid by the
City of Jacksonville upon achieving the financial closing with all capital sources fully
committed or funded.

Infrastructure: No City of Jacksonville infrastructure improvements are contemplated.
Land: No City of Jacksonville land is committed to the project.

Minimum Capital Contribution:

e The minimum capital contribution through completion to remain eligible for the maximum
REV Grant funding amount is $68,321,400, although this amount may be reduced by not
more than 10% ($61,489,260) to remain eligible with a pro rata reduction in the maximum
indebtedness commensurate with any such decrease. For these purposes, the Minimal
Capital Contribution shall exclude expenditures towards Clubhouse & Common Area FFE,
Environmental Due Diligence and Reporting, Accounting, Legal, and Consulting fees,
Market Study & Appraisal fees, Site Amenities, Retail Tl and Brokerage Fee, Lease Up
Budget, Title & Recording, Real Estate Taxes during construction, Developer Fee, Loan
Fees, Construction Interest, Debt Consultation Fee, Operating Deficit Reserve, Ground
Lease costs and similar soft costs as determined by the DIA in its sole discretion.

Additional Commitments:

1) The Developer commits to the development of:
e A minimum of 240 dwelling units.
e A seven-story garage with a minimum of 280 spaces.

e Rooftop swimming pool, fitness center, and other amenities generally as outlined in plans
submitted with the application.

o Not less than 7,400 square feet of retail/restaurant/lounge space, including 4,700 square
feet on the ground floor, which will be open and provide direct access to the public during
normal business hours.



Resolution 2024-06-01
Page 6

2) In association, the Developer commits to the incorporation of design elements, signage, and other
measures that recognize the historical significance of the existing property and the area in which it
is located.

3) Developer commits to pursue in good faith, with all best efforts including financial support, to
finalize negotiations with the adjacent property owner to utilize the current Forsyth Street E
roadway for activated public space for use during game days and other events within the Sports
and Entertainment District.

Performance Schedule:

e Commencement of Construction: Within six (6) months following execution of the
Redevelopment Agreement, applicant commits to re-commence construction, meaning
receipt of all required approvals, permitting, and closing on all required financing to allow
the start of construction activities and has actually broken ground to begin work.

e Substantial Completion: Within twenty-four (24) months following commencement of
construction as defined above.

e The DIA CEO will have authority to extend this Performance Schedule, in the CEO’s
discretion, for up to six (6) months for good cause shown by the Developer / Applicant.

This Term Sheet proposal is limited by the following conditions:

e The proposed REV Grant requires adherence to all terms and conditions found in the
DDRB approval letter dated May 21, 2020.

e There will be additional terms, conditions, rights, responsibilities, warranties, and
obligations for both parties which shall be determined in a later negotiated mutually
agreeable written contract (or multiple written contracts as is deemed necessary).



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
RESOLUTION 2024-06-01 RISE DORO STAFF REPORT




DIA STRATEGIC IMPLEMENTATION COMMITTEE
Staff Report
June 14, 2024

The RISE Doro

Applicant: Jacksonwville Properties |, LLC (RISE: A Real Estate Company)
Project: The RISE Doro - multifamily development
Proposed: DIA Market Rate Multi-Family Housing REV Grant $11,450,000
City of Jacksonville - Workforce Housing Completion Grant $3.000.000

City of Jacksonville - Emergency Rapid Response Grant $1,000,000

Total Development Costs (as presented): $79,123,500
Total Development Cost (as underwritten): $68,321,400

The Project

The developer, RISE: A Real Estate Company (“RISE”), based in Jacksonville, FL, was awarded a REV Grant
in 2020 to facilitate the development of a new multifamily housing complex on the site of the Doro Fixture
Building and surrounding properties, located principally at 102 & 128 A. Philip Randolph Blvd. The site is
approximately 1.63 acres, comprised of seven buildings constructed between 1914 and 1954; located
within the Sports and Entertainment Overlay District of the Downtown Northbank Community
Redevelopment Area; and is bounded by A. Philip Randolph Blvd. to the east, Forsyth Street E. to the
south, Lafayette St. to the west, and Adams Street E. to the north. The development was nearing
completion earlier this year, and on January 28, 2024 was to site of a tragic fire that nearly destroyed all
of the construction underway.

With approvals from the Fire Marshall and from its insurance company, the Developer responded quickly
to damage caused by the fire and initiated rapid demolition of the affected structure to minimize risk to
the public and to minimize business disruption to the surrounding business community, stadiums, arena,
and public parking structures, and incurred additional cost in taking the quick response measures.

The redevelopment of the site is also expected to get underway as quickly as possible following the same
development plan as before. However, the operating model differs slightly in that the Developer is
dedicating 85 units towards workforce housing to acknowledge the need for stable, mixed-income
housing across Jacksonville for the benefit of local workers. Rents on these 85 units will be restricted for
30 years to the maximum rent levels published annually by the Florida Housing Finance Corporation
(FHFC) for tenants making not more than 120% of the Area Median income (AMI).

The project received final DDRB approval at the May 14, 2020 board meeting, and redevelopment will
require adherence to that approval.

The RISE Doro
The RISE Doro is a proposed 247-unit multifamily apartment complex, built in a single building that will



also include a seven-level structured parking garage providing approximately 300 parking spaces wrapped
largely by the complex. In addition, the project proposes 4,700 square feet of ground level retail,
commercial, and restaurant space with the rooftop presenting a pool amenity for residents, and
approximately 2,700 square foot terrace for indoor/outdoor bar open to the public. Access to the rooftop
area from the ground floor is provided by an elevator dedicated only to this level.

The overall property will be approximately
360,000 square feet and will provide 247
multifamily apartments including 15-954 sf
one-bedroom townhome units, 173 one-
bedroom units (625-750 sf each), and 61-
1,025 sf two-bedroom units.

Of these units, a total of 85 units including
70-1 bedroom units and 15- 2 bedroom
units, will be rent restricted to not more
than the maximum established by FHFC for
tenants making up to 120% AMI. These rent
levels are approximately equal to market
rent in Jacksonville today, but will ensure
affordability through a recorded Land Use
Restrictive Agreement (LURA) to maintain
these rent levels for a period of 30 years.

As part of the redevelopment, the former
Forsyth Street E., (officially closed) which
runs east to west between the RISE Doro
site and the property to the south where

Manifest Distilling and Intuition Ale Works :
operate, is proposed to be redeveloped to become a 6,100 square feet street plaza with outdoor seating,
lighting, and activities. Forsyth Street E. is included in the fee-simple ownership of the adjacent property
and negotiations are underway with the owner of that property for the shared usage of this space,
particularly during game days and other events in the Sport’s and Entertainment District. The property is
ideally located for such activity given its proximity to TIAA Bank Field, Daily’s Place, the Baseball Grounds
of Jacksonville, and VyStar Veterans Memorial Arena all of which are located between two to five blocks
away. This amenity would make a positive contribution towards furthering the entertainment aspect of
this downtown district.

The Development Team

RISE will be developing this property under the single-purpose entity created for this project, Jacksonville
Properties |, LLC, organized under Delaware law with authorization to conduct business in the State of



Florida provided by the Florida Department of State, Division of Corporations. Its Manager is shown to be
Mr. Gregory Hunter, the CFO of RISE.

RISE was formed in 1995 in Valdosta, GA with a focus on multifamily and student housing development

and relocated its headquarters to Jacksonville in 2021. The firm has completed more than 80 projects,

more than 18.5 million square feet with a value in excess of $3 billion across 23 states, mostly along the

easter seaboard, Texas, and Louisiana. The company’s development activity has produced parking decks

and retail spaces totaling over 8,900 structured parking spaces, and 288,000 square feet of retail., and
over 4,500 dining seats.

The executive team for RISE includes:

Ryan Holmes, CEO: Prior to RISE, Holmes founded the property management firm, Sunbelt
Holding Management Company where he spearheaded all growth, business development and
daily operations. This organization later evolved into Ambling Management Company and was
recently listed as number 42 in Multifamily Executive magazine’s “Top 50” ranking. Holmes earned
a bachelor’s degree in finance and real estate from Georgia Southern University. Additionally, he
is a Georgia Registered Real Estate Appraiser and holds active broker licenses in Georgia, North
Carolina and South Carolina.

Greg Blias, President: During his tenure with the company, Blias has been associated with 75
student housing developments totaling more than $2.6 billion. Blias graduated from Mississippi
State University with a bachelor’s degree in business administration.

Greg Hunter, CFO: Before joining RISE, Hunter was with Hunt Construction Company, Inc., where
he served in various financial positions and was ultimately promoted to assistant controller.
Hunter graduated from Valdosta State University with a BBA in Accounting. Hunter is also a
certified public accountant and a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (AICPA).

Matt Marshall, Vice President (Principal contact): Marshall has experience in multiple residential
uses including market rate housing, mixed-uses, building conversions and extensive rehab
projects. Marshall has over 19 years of industry experience developing over 7,000 market rate
apartments, and over 21 student housing transactions. Marshall graduated from Indiana State
University and is an active member of the Urban Land Institute. He is also a Certified Commercial
Investment Member candidate (CCIM) and holds a Florida real estate license.

RISE will develop, construct, and manage RISE Doro in-house. Additional information on the firm may be

found at the company’s website: https://risere.com/.

Pro Forma Operations

As modeled in the Developer’s pro forma, the RISE Doro is expected to generate Effective Gross
Income of $6.7 million in its first full year of operation with growth of 2.5-3% in subsequent years.
This estimate includes residential rent assumptions of $2.12 sf to $2.90 sf, other income of just
over $1 million per year, and incorporates vacancy rate of 5% of projected Potential Gross Income.


https://risere.com/

e Other income of just over $1 million annually is comprised of parking permit fees (41%), retail
(22%), cable and internet income (22%), and miscellaneous other (14%).

e Total operating expenses are estimated at approximately 42% of revenues annually including net
property taxes of $335-436,000 per year through the first ten years, and ground lease cost of
$707-845,000 per year discussed further under Capital Considerations.

e Management fee paid to the related entity, RISE Management, is modeled at 3% of Effective Gross
Income.

e Replacement reserves are modeled at $199 per unit, per year.

e Net Operating Income is estimated to be $4.1 million in the first year of stabilized operations.

Capital Considerations

e Total development costs as presented equals $79,123,500.

e Net of developer fee, finance costs, reserves, market studies, ground lease fee, and similar costs
deemed to not directly add to the taxable value of the development, underwritten development
costs for purposes of the REV grant total $69,511,400.

e Total equity to be injected is shown to be $29,531,683; 37.3% of TDC.

e A third party entity, iStar, LLC (https://www.istar.com/) acquired the land for the project for
$5,350,000
responsible for all property taxes.

in 2021 and ground leases it back to RISE for the development, while RISE is

e Construction and permanent debt on the development is shown to be limited to $33,792,000;
42.7% of TDC.

REV Calculation:
The table following outlines the program parameters of the DIA Multifamily Housing REV Grant program.

Under this program, applicants are limited to a maximum of 75% REV for a period of twenty year.

Point
Eligibility

Development

Program Parameters Metrics

5% for every 10 units produced in Downtown Jacksonville (maximum of 25%);
plus 247 25%

10% for each 2,500 square feet of ground level restaurant/bar, retail space, or
balcony/rooftop restaurant/bar accessible by the public directly from the street

(maximum 25%); plus 12,070 25%
5% for each 10% of activated linear front footage above the 30% minimum
required per street frontage (maximum of 20%); plus 474/1,029=46% 5%
Hisotircal
features
incorporated,
Up to 10% for enhanced design and quality including unique architectural enhanced
features and materials (to qualify for this factor, conceptual plans including lighting and
exterior materials, must have received DDRB approval); plus, landscaping 10%



https://www.istar.com/

Elevated HVAC,
cistern for water
capture, ground

Up to 10% for resiliency through on or more of the following: floor resiliency,

- Resilient Building Design - 5% cool roof

- Resilient Landscaping —5% features 10%
TOTAL 75%

As calculated on the proposed of REV, based on the underwritten development cost of $68,321,400, and
tangible personal property of $739,300, with the addition of $3,000,000 in the Workforce Housing
Completion Grant (70-1 br units @ 30,000 + 15-2 br units @ 60,000) and $1,000,000 in the Emergency
Rapid Response Grant, the estimated ROl on the City’s investment is 1.00X.

$68.3 Million in Capital Expenditures (06/04/24)

Ad Valorem Taxes Generated

Incremental County Operating Millage (1)] $ 15,369,000
Local Option Sales Tax (2)] s 65,603
Payroll (3)] S 16,000
Add'l Benefits Provided (4)
Total City Expected Benefit $15,450,603
Total City Investment (5) $ 15,450,000
Net Benefit S 603
Return on Investment Ratio 1.00

(1) - The investment from the Company is estimated to be $68,321,400 in eligible Capital Contribution for
development and $739,300 in taxable Tangible Personal Property

(2) - Local Option Sales Tax is based on the revenue generated through retail sales, food and beverage,
and commercial leases.

(3) - Job estimates are calculated at # of jobs * avg. wage. Assumes 20% spent locally and
a 1 percentsales tax over 20 years.

(4) - Value of any additional contribution being made for the benefit of the city in consideration of the incentive

(5) - City Incentives as follows: REV $11,450,000
Other S 4,000,000
Total Direct Incentives $15,450,000




TAB IlI.C.ii
RESOLUTION 2024-06-02 NORTHBANK FY 23-24 AMENDED BUDGET




RESOLUTION 2024-06-02

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
(“DIA”) AS THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOMENT AGENCY FOR THE
COMBINED NORTHBANK COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA
RECONCILING FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 BUDGET FOR THE
COMBINED DOWNTOWN EAST AND NORTHWEST TAX INCREMENT
DISTRICT TO REFLECT ACTUAL AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVED;
IN ITS CAPACITY TO DO SO WITHOUT ANY FURTHER CITY
COUNCIL ACTION, EFFECTUATING A CRA BUDGET TRANSFER
INCLUDED AS EXHIBIT ‘A’; INSTRUCTING THE DIA CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”) TO TAKE ALL ACTION NECESSARY
TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSE OF THIS RESOLUTION;
AUTHORIZING ITS CEO TO MAKE NON-SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES
TO EXHIBIT ‘A’ AS MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE BUDGET OR
ACCOUNTING OFFICES; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) is the Community
Redevelopment Agency for the Northbank Community Redevelopment Area (“CRA”) pursuant
to Ordinance 2012-0364; and

WHEREAS, as the Community Redevelopment Agency, the DIA is responsible for
developing, recommending, and implementing the budget for the Combined Northbank
Community Redevelopment Area; and

WHEREAS, the FY 23-24 budget for the Combined Northbank CRA was adopted by City
Council via Ordinance 2023-504-E, which included a projection of ad valorem taxes to be
received; and

WHEREAS, the actual ad valorem taxes received within the Combined Northbank CRA
are $4,597 less than the adopted budget; and

WHEREAS, the DIA desires to reduce the Unallocated Plan Authorized Expenditures
activity by $4,597, as more fully identified on Exhibit ‘A’, as an expense offset to this revenue
shortage, leaving sufficient available balance in Unallocated Plan Authorized Expenditures of
$254,177.00 of which $250,000 will be requested to lapse to Park Maintenance at year end.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority:

Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are
incorporated herein by this reference.

Section 2. The DIA hereby instructs its Chief Executive Officer to effectuate a Budget
Transfer in a form substantially similar to the attached Exhibit ‘A’, further authorizing other non-
substantive changes as may be required by the Budget or Accounting offices.



RESOLUTION 2024-06-02
PAGE 2 OF 2

Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the Chair
of the DIA Board.

WITNESS: DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Jim Citrano, Chair Date

VOTE: In Favor: Opposed: Abstained:



EXHIBIT A
RESOLUTION 2024-06-02

CRA Budget Transfer Form

City of Jacksonville, Florida
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Downtown Investment Authority - Northbank CRA

PAGE 3 OF 4

NO

Name of Community Redevelopment Agency

Plan Capital Project ( Yes or No)
(if applicable fill out CRA Capital Project Form)

Description of Expenditure Request:

7

Council District (s)

REDUCTION IN EXPENSE BUDGET WITHIN THE UNALLOCATED PLAN AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURE ACTIVITY AND REDUCTION IN PRIOR APPROPRIATED AD VALOREM TAX

REVENUE WITHIN THE DOWNTOWN NORTHWEST CRA TRUST TO REFLECT ACTUAL REVENUE RECEIVED.

$4,597.00

Total Amount of Expenditure Request

N/A

N/A

Applicable Approved CRA Budget Line Item For Expenditure

Anticipated Expenditure Commencement Date

Anticipated Expenditure Completion Date

Available Funds in Approved CRA Budget Line Item

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

CRA Board Administrator Approval

BUDGET OFFICE

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

Budget Officer Approval

Budget Office and Accounting approval required to verify available funds and for any necessary finance activity / line item changes.

ACCOUNTING DIVISION

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

Comptroller Approval

CRA BOARD APPROVAL

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

CRA Board Chair Approval

Expenditure Amount Approved by CRA Board

R-2024-06-02 06/20/24

CRA Board Resolution Number Resolution Date



EXHIBIT A PAGE 4 OF 4
RESOLUTION 2024-06-02

Budget Transfer Line Item Detalil * This element of the account string is titled project but it houses both projects and grants.

TRANSFER FROM: (Revenue line items in this area are being appropriated and expense line items are being de-appropriated.)

Total: $4,597.00 Accounting Codes
Eig Fund Title Activity / Grant / Project Title Line Item / Account Title Amount Fund Center | Account | Project* | Activity [ Interfund | Future
EXP DOWNTOWN NORTHBANK CRA |UNALLOCATED PLAN AUTHORIZED TRUST FUND AUTHORIZED $4.597.00| 10801 | 191021 | 549008 | 000000 | 00001307 | 00000 | 0000000

TRUST EXPENDITURE EXPENDITURES

TRANSFER TO: (Revenue line items in this area are being de-appropriated and expense line items are being appropriated.)

Total: $4,597.00 Accounting Codes

Rev

. Fund Title Activity / Grant / Project Title Line Item / Account Title Amount Fund | Center | Account | Project* | Activity | Interfund | Future

REV ?gl\j\gferOWN NORTHBANK CRA Bg[\;leBTOWN NORTHWEST CRA PROPERTY TAXES $4,597.00| 10801 | 191021 | 311010 | 000000 | 00001294 | 00000 | 0000000




TAB Ill.C.iii
RESOLUTION 2024-06-03 SOUTHSIDE FY 23-24 AMENDED BUDGET




RESOLUTION 2024-06-03

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
(“DIA”) AS THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOMENT AGENCY FOR THE
SOUTHSIDE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA RECONCILING
FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 BUDGET FOR THE SOUTHSIDE TAX
INCREMENT DISTRICT TO REFLECT ACTUAL AD VALOREM TAXES
RECEIVED; IN ITS CAPACITY TO DO SO WITHOUT FURTHER CITY
COUNCIL ACTION, EFFECTUATING A CRA BUDGET TRANSFER
INCLUDED AS EXHIBIT °‘A’; INSTRUCTING THE DIA CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”) TO TAKE ALL ACTION NECESSARY
TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSE OF THIS RESOLUTION;
AUTHORIZING ITS CEO TO MAKE NON-SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES
TO EXHIBIT ‘A’ AS MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE BUDGET OR
ACCOUNTING OFFICES; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) is the Community
Redevelopment Agency for the Southside Community Redevelopment Area (“CRA”) pursuant to
Ordinance 2012-0364; and

WHEREAS, as the Community Redevelopment Agency, the DIA is responsible for
developing, recommending, and implementing the budget for the Southside Community
Redevelopment Area; and

WHEREAS, the FY 23-24 budget for the Southside CRA was adopted by City Council
via Ordinance 2023-504-E, which included a projection of ad valorem taxes to be received; and

WHEREAS, the actual ad valorem taxes received within the Southside CRA are $39,105
more than the adopted budget; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to s. 106.346 Additional Revenue Received During a Fiscal Year,
Jacksonville Code of Ordinances, the City Council “hereby appropriates, in the not-to-exceed
amount of $100,000, additional revenues received by each CRA Trust Fund during a fiscal year,
except for investment pool earnings...to Unallocated Plan Authorized Expenditures.”; and

WHEREAS, for accounting purposes s. 106.346 is memorialized as a creation of
additional revenue budget to reflect actual revenues; and

WHEREAS, for accounting purposes the CRA BT includes a corresponding expense
budget reflective of the CRA Board’s action by resolution without a need to transfer from
Unallocated Plan Authorized Expenditures; and

WHEREAS, the DIA desires to increase the Future Year Debt Reduction activity by
$39,105, as more fully identified on Exhibit ‘A”’,



RESOLUTION 2024-06-03
PAGE 2 OF 2

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority:

Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are
incorporated herein by this reference.

Section 2. The DIA hereby instructs its Chief Executive Officer to effectuate a Budget
Transfer in a form substantially similar to the attached Exhibit ‘A’, further authorizing other non-

substantive changes as may be required by the Budget or Accounting offices.

Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the Chair
of the DIA Board.

WITNESS: DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Jim Citrano, Chair Date

VOTE: In Favor: Opposed: Abstained:



EXHIBIT A
RESOLUTION 2024-06-03

CRA Budget Transfer Form

City of Jacksonville, Florida
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Downtown Investment Authority - Northbank CRA

PAGE 3 OF 4

NO

Name of Community Redevelopment Agency

Plan Capital Project ( Yes or No)
(if applicable fill out CRA Capital Project Form)

Description of Expenditure Request:

5

Council District (s)

INCREASE IN EXPENSE BUDGET WITHIN THE FUTURE YEAR DEBT REDUCTION ACTIVITY AND APPROPRIATION OF AD VALOREM TAX REVENUE WITHIN THE DOWNTOWN

SOUTHBANK CRA TRUST TO REFLECT ACTUAL REVENUE RECEIVED.

$39,105.00

Total Amount of Expenditure Request

N/A

N/A

Applicable Approved CRA Budget Line Item For Expenditure

Anticipated Expenditure Commencement Date

Anticipated Expenditure Completion Date

Available Funds in Approved CRA Budget Line Item

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

CRA Board Administrator Approval

BUDGET OFFICE

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

Budget Officer Approval

Budget Office and Accounting approval required to verify available funds and for any necessary finance activity / line item changes.

ACCOUNTING DIVISION

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

Comptroller Approval

CRA BOARD APPROVAL

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

CRA Board Chair Approval

Expenditure Amount Approved by CRA Board

R-2024-06-03 06/20/24

CRA Board Resolution Number Resolution Date



EXHIBIT A PAGE 4 OF 4
RESOLUTION 2024-06-03

Budget Transfer Line Item Detalil * This element of the account string is titled project but it houses both projects and grants.

TRANSFER FROM: (Revenue line items in this area are being appropriated and expense line items are being de-appropriated.)

Total: $39,105.00 Accounting Codes
Eig Fund Title Activity / Grant / Project Title Line Item / Account Title Amount Fund Center | Account | Project* | Activity [ Interfund | Future
REV DOWNTOWN SOUTHBANK CRA IDOWNTOWN SOUTHBANK CRA PROPERTY TAXES $39,105.00( 10802 | 191021 | 311010 | 000000 (00001295 | 00000 ([ 0000000

TRUST TRUST - ACTIVITY

TRANSFER TO: (Revenue line items in this area are being de-appropriated and expense line items are being appropriated.)

Total: $39,105.00 Accounting Codes
Ei;\)/ Fund Title Activity / Grant / Project Title Line Item / Account Title Amount Fund | Center | Account | Project* | Activity | Interfund | Future
exp |POWNTOWN SOUTHBANK CRA |- j1)RE YEAR DEBT REDUCTION TRUST FUND AUTHORIZED $39,105.00( 10802 | 191021 | 549006 | 000000 | 00001567 | 00000 | 0000000

TRUST EXPENDITURE




TAB lll.C.iv

RESOLUTION 2024-06-06 NORTHBANK FY 23-24 AMENDED BUDGET —
ADDITIONAL REVENUE




RESOLUTION 2024-06-06

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
(“DIA”) AS THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOMENT AGENCY FOR THE
COMBINED NORTHBANK COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA
REVISING FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 BUDGET FOR THE COMBINED
DOWNTOWN EAST AND NORTHWEST TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT;
REQUESTING OF CITY COUNCIL TO ADOPT AN ORDINANCE
EFFECTUATING THE APPROPRIATION OF $180,000 RECEIVED
FROM FSCJ AS REPAYMENT OF A DEVELOPMENT LOAN TO THE
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT LOANS ACTIVITY/ACCOUNT;
INSRUCTING THE DIA CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”) TO
TAKE ALL ACTION NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSE OF
THIS RESOLUTION; AUTHORIZING ITS CEO TO MAKE NON-
SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES TO EXHIBIT ‘A’ AS MAY BE REQUIRED BY
THE BUDGET, ACCOUNTING OR COUNCIL AUDITORS OFFICES;
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) is the Community
Redevelopment Agency for the Combined Northbank Community Redevelopment Area (“CRA”)
pursuant to Ordinance 2012-0364; and

WHEREAS, as the Community Redevelopment Agency, the DIA is responsible for
developing, recommending, and implementing the budget for the Combined Northbank
Community Redevelopment Area; and

WHEREAS, the DIA has loaned FSCJ $180,000 pursuant to a Loan Agreement entered

into July 17, 2020, between the DIA and the District Board of Trustees of Florida State College at
Jacksonville; and

WHEREAS, those loans were made from the Combined Northbank CRA; and

WHEREAS, the DIA has received $180,000 from FSCJ as repayment on the
abovementioned loan; and

WHEREAS, the DIA desires City Council to appropriate that revenue to the
fund/activity/account from which they were loaned,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority:

Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are
incorporated herein by this reference.



RESOLUTION 2024-06-06
PAGE 2 OF 2

Section 2. The DIA requests that City Council appropriate revenue received from
FSCJ as repayment on a development loan to the fund/activity/account from which they were
loaned as illustrated by Exhibit ‘A’.

Section 3. The DIA hereby instructs its Chief Executive Officer to effectuate a Budget
Transfer in a form substantially similar to the attached Exhibit ‘A’, further authorizing other non-

substantive changes as may be required by the Budget or Accounting offices.

Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the Chair
of the DIA Board.

WITNESS: DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Jim Citrano, Chair Date

VOTE: In Favor: Opposed: Abstained:



EXHIBIT A

RESOLUTION 2024-06-06

City of Jacksonville, Florida
Request for Budget Transfer Form

DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Department or Area Responsible for Contract / Compliance / Oversight

Reversion of Funds:

N/A

(if applicable) Fund / Center / Account / Project * / Activity / Interfund / Future

Section of Code Being Waived (if applicable):

N/A

Justification for Waiver

PAGE 3 OF 4

7
Council District(s)

ALL YEARS FUNDS

Fiscal Yr(s) of carry over (all-years funds do not require a carryover)

CIP (yes or no): NO

N/A

Justification for / Description of Transfer:

APPROPRIATE REVENUE RECEIVED AS A REPAYMENT OF A DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT LOAN TO THE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT LOANS ACTIVITY FOR

FUTURE PROJECTS.

Net Amount Appropriated and/or Transferred:

$180,000.00

* This element of the account string is titled project but it houses
both projects and grants.

Requesting Council Member:

CITY COUNCIL

Requesting Council Member:

Prepared By:

CM's District:

CM's District:

Ordinance:

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

|:| BUDGET ORDINANCE |:| TRANSFER DIRECTIVE

Date Rec'd. Date Fwd.

Approved

Disapproved

Department Head

Mayor's Office

Accounting Division

Budget Division

Date of Action By Mayor:

Division Chief:

Approved:

TD / BT Number:

Prepared By:

GUY PAROLA

Initiated / Requested By (if other than Department):

Date Initiated:

Phone Number: 255-5305




Budget Transfer Line Item Detail

Budget Office approval does not confirm: 1) whether or not a grant requires a new 1Cloud grant number 2) the availability of prior-year revenue 3) the available fund balance in a non-all-years fund 4) the use of
fund balance appropriations in all-years funds.

TRANSFER FROM:

Budget Officer Initials

EXHIBIT A

RESOLUTION 2024-06-06

* This element of the account string is titled project but it houses both projects and grants.

(Revenue line items in this area are being appropriated and expense line items are being de-appropriated.)

PAGE 4 OF 4

Total: $180,000.00 Accounting Codes
Féi; Fund Title Activity / Grant / Project Title Line Item / Account Title Amount Fund Center | Account | Project* | Activity | Interfund | Future
Ry 2N TOWN NORTHEANK CRAlooWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT LOAN  [LOAN REPAYMENT - REVENUE $180,000.00| 10801 | 191021 | 369940 | 000000 | 00001358 | 00000 |0000000
TRANSFER TO: (Revenue line items in this area are being de-appropriated and expense line items are being appropriated.)
Total: $180,000.00 Accounting Codes
E;\a/ Fund Title Activity / Grant / Project Title Line Item / Account Title Amount Fund Center | Account | Project* [ Activity | Interfund | Future
EXP DOWNTOWN NORTHBANK CRA DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT LOAN |LOANS $180,000.00( 10801 | 191021 [ 599950 | 000000 | 00001358 (| 00000 (0000000

TRUST




TAB Ill.C.v
RESOLUTION 2024-06-07 NORTHBANK FY 23-24 MPS BT




RESOLUTION 2024-06-07

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
(“DIA”) AS THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOMENT AGENCY FOR THE
COMBINED NORTHBANK COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA
REVISING FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 BUDGET FOR THE COMBINED
DOWNTOWN EAST AND NORTHWEST TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT
TRANSFERING FUNDS FROM AN ACTIVITY FORMERLY USED FOR
SERVICING FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS RELATING TO A NOW
DEFUNCT AGREEMENT WITH METROPOLITAN PARKING
SOLUTIONS, LLC (“MPS”) TO A MAINTENANCE RESERVE
ACCOUNT FOR THE THREE DIA LEASED GARAGES; IN ITS
CAPACITY TO DO SO WITHOUT FURTHER CITY COUNCIL ACTION,
EFFECTUATING A CRA BUDGET TRANSFER INCLUDED AS
EXHIBIT °‘A’; INSTRUCTING THE DIA CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(“CEO”) TO TAKE ALL ACTION NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE
PURPOSE OF THIS RESOLUTION; AUTHORIZING ITS CEO TO
MAKE NON-SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES TO EXHIBIT ‘A’ AS MAY BE
REQUIRED BY THE BUDGET OR ACCOUNTING OFFICES;
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, in accordance with §106.340 through §106.346, Ordinance Code, the DIA
Board has been given authority to allocate and transfer Tax Increment District funds within the
CRA Budget, an all years account, in accordance with the provisions of those sections, without
further City Council approval; and

WHEREAS, the City, the Jacksonville Economic Development Commission (the predecessor
of the DIA) and MPS entered into a redevelopment agreement in 2004 under which the City agreed to
loan funds to MPS to construct and operate three downtown parking garages (the Courthouse Garage on
Adams Street and the Sports Complex Garage and Arena Garage on A. Phillip Randolph Boulevard
flanking the arena); and

WHEREAS, the City was required to loan the developer funds periodically as needed to cover
net operating losses from operation of the garages along with an agreed-upon rate of return on investment;
and

WHEREAS, in 2022, the City and MPS reached a settlement agreement authorized by
Ordinance 2022-138-E; and

WHEREAS, a result of that settlement agreement was the satisfaction of the MPS
financial obligation created in 2004; and

WHEREAS, section 106.342, Jacksonville Code of Ordinances, states that any funds
remaining after the payment of a financial obligation are transferred to Unallocated Plan
Authorized Expenditures; and

WHEREAS, as part of that agreement, a capital maintenance reserve account is required
to be funded annually with at least $25,000, to be used for capital maintenance expenditures on
the three garages; and



RESOLUTION 2024-06-07
PAGE 2 OF 4

WHEREAS, for accounting purposes the CRA BT transfers budget directly from the
satisfied MPS subsidy financial obligation to the capital maintenance plan authorized
expenditure without intervening transfers to and from Unallocated Plan Authorized
Expenditures,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Downtown Investment Authority:

Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are
incorporated herein by this reference.

Section 2. The DIA hereby instructs its Chief Executive Officer to effectuate a
Budget Transfer in a form substantially similar to the attached Exhibit ‘A’, further authorizing
other non-substantive changes as may be required by the Budget or Accounting offices.

Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the
Chair of the DIA Board.

WITNESS: DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Jim Citrano, Chair Date

VOTE: In Favor: Opposed: Abstained:



EXHIBIT A
RESOLUTION 2024-06-07

PAGE 3 OF 4

CRA Budget Transfer Form

City of Jacksonville, Florida

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Downtown Investment Authority - Northbank CRA

NO

Name of Community Redevelopment Agency

Plan Capital Project ( Yes or No)
(if applicable fill out CRA Capital Project Form)

Description of Expenditure Request:

7

Council District (s)

TRANSFER EXPENSE BUDGET FROM THE MPS SUBSIDY ACTIVITY FORMERLY USED FOR SERVICING A NOW DEFUNCT AGREEMENT. TRANSFERING THESE FUNDS FOR
USE WITHIN A CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT FOR THE BENEFIT OF MAINTENANCE OF THE THREE GARAGES LEASED BY THE CITY/DIA. THE CITY/DIA IS REQUIRED AS
PART OF THE LEASE AGREEMENT TO FUND CERTAIN MAINTENANCE AND HOLD THOSE FUNDS WITHIN A RESERVE ACCOUNT.

$77,003.27

OCT 1 2023

SEP 30 2024

Total Amount of Expenditure Request

Applicable Approved CRA Budget Line Item For Expenditure

Anticipated Expenditure Commencement Date Anticipated Expenditure Completion Date

Available Funds in Approved CRA Budget Line Item

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

CRA Board Administrator Approval

BUDGET OFFICE

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

Budget Officer Approval

Budget Office and Accounting approval required to verify available funds and for any necessary finance activity / line item changes.

ACCOUNTING DIVISION

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd. Comptroller Approval

CRA BOARD APPROVAL

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

CRA Board Chair Approval

Expenditure Amount Approved by CRA Board

R-2024-06-07 06/20/24

CRA Board Resolution Number Resolution Date



EXHIBIT A PAGE 4 OF 4
RESOLUTION 2024-06-07

Budget Transfer Line Item Detalil * This element of the account string is titled project but it houses both projects and grants.

TRANSFER FROM: (Revenue line items in this area are being appropriated and expense line items are being de-appropriated.)

Total: $77,003.27 Accounting Codes
Eig Fund Title Activity / Grant / Project Title Line Item / Account Title Amount Fund Center | Account | Project* | Activity [ Interfund | Future
EXP DOWNTOWN NORTHBANK CRA MPS SUBSIDY DOWNTOWN GARAGES MISC NON-DEPARTMENTAL $77,003.27( 10801 | 135101 | 549045 | 000000 | 00000720 | 00000 ([ 0000000

TRUST EXPENDITURES

TRANSFER TO: (Revenue line items in this area are being de-appropriated and expense line items are being appropriated.)

Total: $77,003.27 Accounting Codes

Rev

. Fund Title Activity / Grant / Project Title Line Item / Subobject Title Amount Fund Center | Account | Project* | Activity [ Interfund| Future

DOWNTOWN NORTHBANK CRA |MPS CAPITAL RESERVE LEASEHOLD (OPERATING LEASE - LEASEHOLD
EXP TRUST IMPROVEMENTS IMPROVEMENTS $77,003.27( 10801 | 135101 | 562990 [ 000000 | 00001796 [ 00000 | 0000000




TAB lll.C.vi

RESOLUTION 2024-06-08 NORTHBANK FY 23-24 LYNCH PRINCIPAL
& INTEREST BT




RESOLUTION 2024-06-08

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
(“DIA”) AS THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOMENT AGENCY FOR THE
COMBINED NORTHBANK COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA
REVISING FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 BUDGET FOR THE COMBINED
DOWNTOWN EAST AND NORTHWEST TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT
TO REFLECT ACTUAL INTEREST AND PRINCIPAL REVENUE TO BE
RECEIVED FOR THE 11E / LYNCH DEVELOPER LOAN REPAYMENT;
IN ITS CAPACITY TO DO SO WITHOUT FURTHER CITY COUNCIL
ACTION, EFFECTUATING A CRA BUDGET TRANSFER INCLUDED
AS EXHIBIT ‘A’; INSTRUCTING THE DIA CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (“CEO”) TO TAKE ALL ACTION NECESSARY TO
EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSE OF  THIS RESOLUTION;
AUTHORIZING ITS CEO TO MAKE NON-SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES
TO EXHIBIT ‘A’ AS MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE BUDGET OR
ACCOUNTING OFFICES; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, in accordance with 8106.340 through 8106.346, Ordinance Code, the DIA
Board has been given authority to allocate and transfer Tax Increment District funds within the
CRA Budget, an all years account, in accordance with the provisions of those sections, without
further City Council approval; and

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 23-24 budget for the Northbank CRA includes $800,000 of
loan repayment revenue for the Lynch / 11E development; and

WHEREAS, the DIA Budget combines interest and principal received into the
aforementioned $800,000; and

WHEREAS, the Accounting Department records interest and principal into separate
accounts, although for FY 23-24, accounting created a revenue budget in the amount of $800,000
to be received, resulting in a shortage in the principal account and an overage in the interest
account; and

WHEREAS, in order to “clean up” the budget, a budget transfer is being effectuated by
this resolution whereby the principal budget is reduced and interest budget increased in
accordance with Exhibit ‘A’ resulting in actual revenues for each account matching budgeted
amounts; and

WHEREAS, this CRA BT is neutral to the total revenue budgeted and to be received by
the CRA in FY 23-24,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Downtown Investment Authority:

Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are
incorporated herein by this reference.



RESOLUTION 2024-06-08
PAGE 2 OF 4

Section 2. The DIA hereby instructs its Chief Executive Officer to effectuate a
Budget Transfer in a form substantially similar to the attached Exhibit ‘A’, further authorizing
other non-substantive changes as may be required by the Budget or Accounting offices.

Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the
Chair of the DIA Board.

WITNESS: DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Jim Citrano, Chair Date

VOTE: In Favor: Opposed: Abstained:



EXHIBIT A
RESOLUTION 2024-06-08

PAGE 3 OF 4

CRA Budget Transfer Form

City of Jacksonville, Florida

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Downtown Investment Authority - Northbank CRA

NO

Name of Community Redevelopment Agency

Plan Capital Project ( Yes or No)
(if applicable fill out CRA Capital Project Form)

Description of Expenditure Request:

7

Council District (s)

THIS BT REFLECTS ACTUAL INTEREST INCOME REVENUE AND PRINCIPAL REVENUE RECEIVED AS A LOAN REPAYMENT BY THE DEVELOPER FOR THE LYNCH 11E
PROJECT. THE FY 23-24 BUDGET WAS CREATED JUST FOR THE PRINCIPAL RESULTING IN ACTUAL PRINCIPAL REVENUE RECEIVED REFLECTED AS A SHORTFALL AND

INTEREST INCOME AS AN OVERAGE.

$356,013.48

OCT 1 2023

SEP 30 2024

Total Amount of Expenditure Request

Applicable Approved CRA Budget Line Item For Expenditure

Anticipated Expenditure Commencement Date Anticipated Expenditure Completion Date

Available Funds in Approved CRA Budget Line Item

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

CRA Board Administrator Approval

BUDGET OFFICE

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

Budget Officer Approval

Budget Office and Accounting approval required to verify available funds and for any necessary finance activity / line item changes.

ACCOUNTING DIVISION

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd. Comptroller Approval

CRA BOARD APPROVAL

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

CRA Board Chair Approval

Expenditure Amount Approved by CRA Board

R-2024-06-08 06/20/24

CRA Board Resolution Number Resolution Date



EXHIBIT A PAGE 4 OF 4
RESOLUTION 2024-06-08

Budget Transfer Line Item Detalil * This element of the account string is titled project but it houses both projects and grants.

TRANSFER FROM: (Revenue line items in this area are being appropriated and expense line items are being de-appropriated.)

Total: $356,013.48 Accounting Codes
Eig Fund Title Activity / Grant / Project Title Line Item / Account Title Amount Fund Center | Account | Project* | Activity [ Interfund | Future
REV DOWNTOWN NORTHBANK CRA |LOAN REPAYMENT 2017-504 LYNCH INTEREST INCOME $356,013.48( 10801 | 191021 | 361105 | 000000 | 00001264 [ 00000 | 0000000

TRUST 11E

TRANSFER TO: (Revenue line items in this area are being de-appropriated and expense line items are being appropriated.)

Total: $356,013.48 Accounting Codes

Rev

. Fund Title Activity / Grant / Project Title Line Item / Subobject Title Amount Fund Center | Account | Project* | Activity [ Interfund| Future

REV _[I_)gl\j\gferOWN NORTHBANK CRA k?éN REPAYMENT 2017-504 LYNCH EALSACREGLEQNEOUS SALES AND $356,013.48| 10801 | 191021 | 369050 | 000000 | 00001264 | 00000 | 0000000




SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

RESOLUTION 2024-06-08 NORTHBANK FY 23-24 LYNCH PRINCIPAL
& INTEREST BT — FY 23-24 NB BUDGET ORD 2023-504 ADOPTED




DOWNTOWN NORTHBANK CRA TRUST
FUND 10801

REVENUES

FY24 Proposed

Property Taxes - Northeast USD1-C
Property Taxes - Northwest USD1-B
Interest Income

Garage - Sports Complex

Adams Street Garage

Courthouse Garage Tenant Lease
Courthouse Garage

Churchwell Loft Lease

Debt Repayment (Lynch /11E)

Debt Repayment (Carling Loan)

Total Revenues:

4,640,885
9,454,722
623,610
900,000
675,000
83,901
100,000
18,801
800,000
506,487

17,803,406

EXPENDITURES

FY24 Proposed

Administrative Expenditures
Supervision Allocation
Annual Independent Audit

Total Administrative Expenditures:

Financial Obligations

Recaptured Enhanced Value (REV) grants
Fidelity National Information Services (2019-596)
Hallmark / 220 Riverside (leg: 2012-270)
Pope & Land / Brooklyn (leg: 2012-703 amend: 2013-288)
Lofts at Jefferson Station (DIA resolution 2017-10-05)
Vista Brooklyn - 200 Riverside (Leg: 2017-101)
Park View Plaza (Leg: 2015-037)
Lofts at Brooklyn (DIA resolution 2018-09-01)

MPS Downtown Garages

Reserve

Miscellaneous Insurance
Debt Service - Debt Defeasance (leg. 2022-137)
Garage - Sports Complex
Adams Street Garage
Courthouse Garage
Lynch Bldg Loan Repayment

Total Financial Obligations:

Plan Authorized Expenditures
Capital Projects
McCoys Creek Park CRA
Shipyards West CRA Project
Riverwalk Enhancements and Signage
Waterfront Activation
Professional Services
Downtown Development Loan
Banner Il Project
Small Scale Residential Incentive
Neighborhood Streetscape Improvements
Unallocated Plan Authorized Expenditures

Total Plan Authorized Expenditures:

Total Expenditures:

Page 1 of 2

922,935
2,500

925,435

773,261
451,913
474,929

73,623
611,443
133,746

90,114

25,000
329,456
1,985,712
250,000
150,000
370,000

800,000

6,519,197

250,000
6,500,000
1,000,000

50,000

250,000

500,000

100,000

75,000
1,000,000

633,774

10,358,774

17,803,406

Revised Schedule V



TAB Ill.C.vii

RESOLUTION 2024-06-09 NORTHBANK FY 23-24 CARLING PRINCIPAL & INTEREST
BT




RESOLUTION 2024-06-09

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
(“DIA”) AS THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOMENT AGENCY FOR THE
COMBINED NORTHBANK COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA
REVISING FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 BUDGET FOR THE COMBINED
DOWNTOWN EAST AND NORTHWEST TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT
TO REFLECT ACTUAL INTEREST AND PRINCIPAL REVENUE TO BE
RECEIVED FOR THE CARLING DEVELOPER LOAN REPAYMENT; IN
ITS CAPACITY TO DO SO WITHOUT FURTHER CITY COUNCIL
ACTION, EFFECTUATING A CRA BUDGET TRANSFER INCLUDED
AS EXHIBIT ‘A’; INSRUCTING THE DIA CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (“CEO”) TO TAKE ALL ACTION NECESSARY TO
EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSE OF  THIS RESOLUTION;
AUTHORIZING ITS CEO TO MAKE NON-SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES
TO EXHIBIT ‘A’ AS MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE BUDGET OR
ACCOUNTING OFFICES; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, in accordance with 8106.340 through 8106.346, Ordinance Code, the DIA
Board has been given authority to allocate and transfer Tax Increment District funds within the
CRA Budget, an all years account, in accordance with the provisions of those sections, without
further City Council approval; and

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 23-24 budget for the Northbank CRA includes $506,487 of
loan repayment revenue for the Carling development; and

WHEREAS, the DIA Budget combines interest and principal received into the
aforementioned $506,487; and

WHEREAS, the Accounting Department records interest and principal into separate
accounts, although for FY 23-24, accounting created a budget in the amount of $506,487 for
principal and no budget for interest to be received, resulting in a shortage in the principal account
and an overage in the interest account; and

WHEREAS, in order to “clean up” the budget, a budget transfer is being effectuated by
this resolution whereby the principal budget is reduced and interest budget increased in
accordance with Exhibit ‘A’ resulting in actual revenues for each account matching budgeted
amounts; and

WHEREAS, this CRA BT is neutral to the total revenue budgeted and to be received by
the CRA in FY 23-24,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Downtown Investment Authority:

Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are
incorporated herein by this reference.



RESOLUTION 2024-06-09
PAGE 2 OF 4

Section 2. The DIA hereby instructs its Chief Executive Officer to effectuate a
Budget Transfer in a form substantially similar to the attached Exhibit ‘A’, further authorizing
other non-substantive changes as may be required by the Budget or Accounting offices.

Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the
Chair of the DIA Board.

WITNESS: DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Jim Citrano, Chair Date

VOTE: In Favor: Opposed: Abstained:



EXHIBIT A

RESOLUTION 2024-06-09

CRA Budget Transfer Form
City of Jacksonville, Florida

PAGE 3 OF 4

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Downtown Investment Authority - Northbank CRA

NO

Name of Community Redevelopment Agency

Plan Capital Project ( Yes or No)

7

(if applicable fill out CRA Capital Project Form)

Council District (s)

Description of Expenditure Request:

THIS BT REFLECTS ACTUAL INTEREST INCOME REVENUE AND PRINCIPAL REVENUE RECEIVED AS A LOAN REPAYMENT BY THE DEVELOPER FOR THE CARLING PROJECT.
THE FY 23-24 BUDGET WAS CREATED JUST FOR THE PRINCIPAL RESULTING IN ACTUAL PRINCIPAL REVENUE RECEIVED REFLECTED AS A SHORTFALL AND INTEREST

INCOME AS AN OVERAGE.

$163,963.20

OCT 1

2023

SEP 30 2024

Total Amount of Expenditure Request

Applicable Approved CRA Budget Line Item For Expenditure

Anticipated Expenditure Commencement Date

Anticipated Expenditure Completion Date

Available Funds in Approved CRA Budget Line Item

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

CRA Board Administrator Approval

BUDGET OFFICE

ACCOUNTING DIVISION

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

Budget Officer Approval

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd. Comptroller Approval

Budget Office and Accounting approval required to verify available funds and for any necessary finance activity / line item changes.

CRA BOARD APPROVAL

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

CRA Board Chair Approval

Expenditure Amount Approved by CRA Board

R-2024-06-09 06/20/24

CRA Board Resolution Number

Resolution Date



EXHIBIT A PAGE 4 OF 4
RESOLUTION 2024-06-09

Budget Transfer Line Item Detalil * This element of the account string is titled project but it houses both projects and grants.

TRANSFER FROM: (Revenue line items in this area are being appropriated and expense line items are being de-appropriated.)

Total: $163,963.20 Accounting Codes
Eig Fund Title Activity / Grant / Project Title Line Item / Account Title Amount Fund Center | Account | Project* | Activity [ Interfund | Future
REV DOWNTOWN NORTHBANK CRA LOAN REPAYMENT 2014-280 CARLING |INTEREST INCOME $163,963.20( 10801 | 191021 | 361105 | 000000 | 00001263 [ 00000 | 0000000

TRUST

TRANSFER TO: (Revenue line items in this area are being de-appropriated and expense line items are being appropriated.)

Total: $163,963.20 Accounting Codes
Ei;\)/ Fund Title Activity / Grant / Project Title Line Item / Subobject Title Amount Fund | Center | Account | Project* | Activity | Interfund | Future
Rey [POWNTOWN NORTHBANK CRA|| 5 AN REPAYMENT 2014-280 CARLING |FAYMENT INLIEU OF TAXES $163,963.20( 10801 | 191021 | 369435 | 000000 | 00001263 | 00000 | 0000000

TRUST DEBT SERVICE OFFSET




SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

RESOLUTION 2024-06-09 NORTHBANK FY 23-24 CARLING PRINCIPAL & INTEREST
BT - FY 23-24 NB BUDGET ORD 2023-504 ADOPTED




DOWNTOWN NORTHBANK CRA TRUST
FUND 10801

REVENUES

FY24 Proposed

Property Taxes - Northeast USD1-C
Property Taxes - Northwest USD1-B
Interest Income

Garage - Sports Complex

Adams Street Garage

Courthouse Garage Tenant Lease
Courthouse Garage

Churchwell Loft Lease

Debt Repayment (Lynch /11E)

Debt Repayment (Carling Loan)

Total Revenues:

4,640,885
9,454,722
623,610
900,000
675,000
83,901
100,000
18,801
800,000
506,487

17,803,406

EXPENDITURES

FY24 Proposed

Administrative Expenditures
Supervision Allocation
Annual Independent Audit

Total Administrative Expenditures:

Financial Obligations

Recaptured Enhanced Value (REV) grants
Fidelity National Information Services (2019-596)
Hallmark / 220 Riverside (leg: 2012-270)
Pope & Land / Brooklyn (leg: 2012-703 amend: 2013-288)
Lofts at Jefferson Station (DIA resolution 2017-10-05)
Vista Brooklyn - 200 Riverside (Leg: 2017-101)
Park View Plaza (Leg: 2015-037)
Lofts at Brooklyn (DIA resolution 2018-09-01)

MPS Downtown Garages

Reserve

Miscellaneous Insurance
Debt Service - Debt Defeasance (leg. 2022-137)
Garage - Sports Complex
Adams Street Garage
Courthouse Garage
Lynch Bldg Loan Repayment

Total Financial Obligations:

Plan Authorized Expenditures
Capital Projects
McCoys Creek Park CRA
Shipyards West CRA Project
Riverwalk Enhancements and Signage
Waterfront Activation
Professional Services
Downtown Development Loan
Banner Il Project
Small Scale Residential Incentive
Neighborhood Streetscape Improvements
Unallocated Plan Authorized Expenditures

Total Plan Authorized Expenditures:

Total Expenditures:

Page 1 of 2

922,935
2,500

925,435

773,261
451,913
474,929

73,623
611,443
133,746

90,114

25,000
329,456
1,985,712
250,000
150,000
370,000

800,000

6,519,197

250,000
6,500,000
1,000,000

50,000

250,000

500,000

100,000

75,000
1,000,000

633,774

10,358,774

17,803,406

Revised Schedule V



TAB lll.C.viii
RESOLUTION 2024-06-10 SOUTHSIDE FY 23-24 STRAND BT




RESOLUTION 2024-06-10

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
(“DIA”) AS THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOMENT AGENCY FOR THE
SOUTHSIDE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA REVISING
FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 BUDGET FOR THE SOUTHSIDE TAX
INCREMENT DISTRICT; IN ITS CAPACITY TO DO SO WITHOUT
FURTHER CITY COUNCIL ACTION, EFFECTUATING A CRABUDGET
TRANSFER INCLUDED AS EXHIBIT °‘A’; INSTRUCTING THE DIA
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”) TO TAKE ALL ACTION
NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSE OF THIS
RESOLUTION; AUTHORIZING ITS CEO TO MAKE NON-
SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES TO EXHIBIT ‘A’ AS MAY BE REQUIRED BY
THE BUDGET OR ACCOUNTING OFFICES; PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) is the Community
Redevelopment Agency for the Southside Community Redevelopment Area (“CRA”) pursuant to
Ordinance 2012-0364; and

WHEREAS, as the Community Redevelopment Agency, the DIA is responsible for
developing, recommending, and implementing the budget for the Southside Community
Redevelopment Area; and

WHEREAS, the FY 23-24 budget for the Southside CRA was adopted by City Council
via Ordinance 2023-504-E included prior years’ carryforward of $23,880.44, the origins of which
are excess expense budget after prior years’ payment of the Strand R.E.V. Grant financial
obligation; and

WHEREAS, section 106.342, Jacksonville Code of Ordinances, states that any funds
remaining after the payment of a financial obligation are transferred to Unallocated Plan
Authorized Expenditures; and

WHEREAS, the DIA desires to allocate the excess carryforward expense budget to Future
Years Debt Reduction as more fully identified on Exhibit ‘A’; and

WHEREAS, for accounting purposes the CRA BT transfers budget directly from the
Strand R.E.V. Grant financial obligation to Future Years Debt Reduction without intervening
transfers to and from Unallocated Plan Authorized Expenditures,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority:

Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are
incorporated herein by this reference.



RESOLUTION 2024-06-10
PAGE 2 OF 2

Section 2. The DIA hereby instructs its Chief Executive Officer to effectuate a Budget
Transfer in a form substantially similar to the attached Exhibit ‘A’, further authorizing other non-
substantive changes as may be required by the Budget or Accounting offices.

Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the Chair
of the DIA Board.

WITNESS: DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Jim Citrano, Chair Date

VOTE: In Favor: Opposed: Abstained:



EXHIBIT A
RESOLUTION 2024-06-10

CRA Budget Transfer Form

City of Jacksonville, Florida
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Downtown Investment Authority - Northbank CRA

PAGE 3 OF 4

NO

Name of Community Redevelopment Agency

Plan Capital Project ( Yes or No)
(if applicable fill out CRA Capital Project Form)

Description of Expenditure Request:

5

Council District (s)

TRANSFER PRIOR YEAR CARRY OVER FUNDS FROM THE STRAND FINANCE OBLIGATION TO FUTURE YEAR DEBT REDUCTION.

$23,880.44

Total Amount of Expenditure Request

N/A

N/A

Applicable Approved CRA Budget Line Item For Expenditure

Anticipated Expenditure Commencement Date

Anticipated Expenditure Completion Date

Available Funds in Approved CRA Budget Line Item

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

CRA Board Administrator Approval

BUDGET OFFICE

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

Budget Officer Approval

Budget Office and Accounting approval required to verify available funds and for any necessary finance activity / line item changes.

ACCOUNTING DIVISION

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

Comptroller Approval

CRA BOARD APPROVAL

Date Rec'd.

Date Fwd.

CRA Board Chair Approval

Expenditure Amount Approved by CRA Board

R-2024-06-10 06/20/24

CRA Board Resolution Number Resolution Date



EXHIBIT A PAGE 4 OF 4
RESOLUTION 2024-06-10

Budget Transfer Line Item Detalil * This element of the account string is titled project but it houses both projects and grants.

TRANSFER FROM: (Revenue line items in this area are being appropriated and expense line items are being de-appropriated.)

Total: $23,880.44 Accounting Codes
Eig Fund Title Activity / Grant / Project Title Line Item / Account Title Amount Fund Center | Account | Project* | Activity [ Interfund | Future
EXP DOWNTOWN SOUTHBANK CRA REV GRT 2001-1329 STRAND INTERFUND TRANSFER OUT $23,880.44 10802 | 191040 | 591012 | 000000 [ 00001296 | 21131 ([ 0000000

TRUST DEBT SERVICE INTEREST

TRANSFER TO: (Revenue line items in this area are being de-appropriated and expense line items are being appropriated.)

Total: $23,880.44 Accounting Codes
Ei;\)/ Fund Title Activity / Grant / Project Title Line Item / Account Title Amount Fund | Center | Account | Project* | Activity | Interfund | Future
exp |POWNTOWN SOUTHBANK CRA |- j1)RE YEAR DEBT REDUCTION TRUST FUND AUTHORIZED $23,880.44( 10802 | 191021 | 549006 | 000000 | 00001567 | 00000 | 0000000

TRUST EXPENDITURE




TAB Ill.C.ix
RESOLUTION 2024-06-05 SOUTHSIDE FY 24-25 REVISED PROPOSED BUDGET




RESOLUTION 2024-06-05

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY AS
THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOMENT AGENCY FOR THE SOUTHSIDE
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA ADOPTING FISCAL YEAR
2024-2025 BUDGET FOR THE SOUTHSIDE TAX INCREMENT
DISTRICT, ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT A; PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) is the Community
Redevelopment Agency for the Southside Community Redevelopment Area (“CRA”) pursuant to
Ordinance 2012-0364; and

WHEREAS, as the Community Redevelopment Agency, the DIA is responsible for
developing, recommending, and implementing the budget for the Southside Community
Redevelopment Area; and

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Section 106.204(c), Jacksonville Ordinance Code, the budgets
for Community Redevelopment Agencies are not due until June 20™; however, in order to allow
time for revenue projections to be developed, the City requested and the DIA provided a proposed
budget for the Southside CRA via Resolution 2024-04-02; and

WHEREAS, a revised budget is being presented although there has not been a change of
greater than $ 100,000.00 from the budget adopted in April by the DIA Board, to note other
changes as in Exhibit “A”,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority:

Section 1. The Southside Tax Increment District budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025
attached hereto as Exhibit ‘B’ is hereby adopted by the DIA.

Section 2. The CEO is authorized to submit this budget and make necessary changes
thereto as required by the Budget Office, with an adjusting change in the Unallocated Plan
Authorized Expenditures as required without further Board approval.

Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the Chair
of the DIA Board.

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]



RESOLUTION 2024-06-05
PAGE 2 OF 2

WITNESS: DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Jim Citrano, Chair Date

VOTE: In Favor: Opposed: Abstained:



EXHIBIT A

RESOLUTION 2024-06-05

COMPARISON TO ADOPTED BUDGET IN APRIL

FY 24 / 25 APPROVED FY 24 / 25 REVISED -
Southside CRA FY 24/ 25 Budget BY BOARD PROPOSED VIA
VIA RES. 04-02 RES. 06-05
Revenue
AD VALOREM REVENUE S 7,305,153 S 7,205,061
INVESTMENT POOL EARNINGS (ALL YEARS) S 500,000 S 613,409
Total Revenue: S 7,805,153 S 7,818,470
Administrative Expenditures
ANNUAL INDEPENDENT AUDIT S 2,500 S 2,500
SUPERVISION ALLOCATION S 369,769 S 342,705
Total Administrative Expenditures: S 372,269 S 345,205
Financial Obligations
THE STRAND (REV) 2001-1329 S 625,000 S 625,000
GI-VP ONE CALL S - S -
SoBa APARTMENTS, LLC /HOME STREET APARTMENTS S 250,000 S 250,000
FR SOUTHERLY /SOUTHBANK APARTMENT VENTURES S 360,000 S 360,000
THE DISTRICT (RIVERSEDGE) S 3,500,000 S 3,500,000
STRAND BONDS INTEREST S 128,900 S 125,856
STRAND BONDS PRINCIPAL S 240,000 S 240,000
Total Financial Obligations: S 5,103,900 S 5,100,856
Future Year Debt Reduction
SS Future Year Debt Reduction * S 100,000 S 40,000
Plan Authorized Expenditures
Plan programs
SS RETAIL ENHANCEMENT S - S -
SS PARKS ENHANCEMENTS
SS SUBSIDIES AND CONTRIBUTIONS TO PRIVATE ORGANIZATIONS S - S -
SS EVENTS S - S -
SB COMMERCIAL REVITALIZATION
SB SMALL SCALE RESIDENTIAL S - S -
SOUTHBANK PARKING & SCREENING
SOUTHBANK BANNERS S - S -
SOUTHBANK URBAN ART
SOUTHBANK MARKETING S - S -
SB RIVERWALK ENHANCEMENT
SB WATERFRONT ACTIVATION
SB DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT LOANS S 50,000 S 50,000
Plan Capital Projects
SS SOUTHBANK PARKING
SS PARKS ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION S - S -
RELOCATION OF RC UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK
FLAGLER AVE. SHARED STREET
SB RIVER & TRIBUTARY ACCESS
ST JOHNS RIVER PARK RESTAURANT S 1,500,000 S 1,500,000
Plan Professional Services
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES S 278,984 S 278,984
SS UNALLOCATED PLAN AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURES S 400,000 S 503,425
Total Plan Authorized Expenditures: S 2,228,984 S 2,332,409
TOTAL EXPENDITURES S 7,805,153 S 7,818,470
TOTAL REVENUES LESS TOTAL EXPENDITURES S - S -

Ad Valorem Taxes based on projections received from Property Appraisal Office.

Investment Pool Earnings has been updated to reflect the amount calculated by the Budget Office using the
Cash Methodology approved by the Council Auditors.

Superv Alloc. First column based on Staff Salaries & Benefits spreadsheet completed by G. Parola. Second Column calculated by Budget Officer.

The Strand Bond Interest & Principal amounts based on Treasury's Amortization Schedule

SS Future Year Debt Reduction has been reduced to $40k from the $100k approved by Board in April since
approx $60k will be transferred into the account via Res. 06-03 & Res. 06-10 which will carryover to FY25.

Unallocated Plan Authorized Expenditures - Amount is determined to balance the budget and will be re-
allocated as approved by the Board.

JUNE 4, 2024



EXHIBIT B
RESOLUTION 2024-06-05
REVISED PROPOSED BUDGET

FY 24 / 25 REVISED -
Southside CRA FY 24/ 25 Budget PROPOSED VIA
RES. 06-05
Revenue
AD VALOREM REVENUE S 7,205,061
INVESTMENT POOL EARNINGS (ALL YEARS) S 613,409
Total Revenue: S 7,818,470
Administrative Expenditures
ANNUAL INDEPENDENT AUDIT S 2,500
SUPERVISION ALLOCATION S 342,705
Total Administrative Expenditures: S 345,205
Financial Obligations
THE STRAND (REV) 2001-1329 S 625,000
GI-VP ONE CALL S -
SoBa APARTMENTS, LLC /HOME STREET APARTMENTS S 250,000
FR SOUTHERLY /SOUTHBANK APARTMENT VENTURES S 360,000
THE DISTRICT (RIVERSEDGE) S 3,500,000
STRAND BONDS INTEREST S 125,856
STRAND BONDS PRINCIPAL S 240,000
Total Financial Obligations: S 5,100,856
Future Year Debt Reduction
SS Future Year Debt Reduction * $ 40,000
Plan Authorized Expenditures
Plan programs
SS RETAIL ENHANCEMENT S -
SS PARKS ENHANCEMENTS
SS SUBSIDIES AND CONTRIBUTIONS TO PRIVATE ORGANIZATIONS S -
SS EVENTS S -
SB COMMERCIAL REVITALIZATION
SB SMALL SCALE RESIDENTIAL S -
SOUTHBANK PARKING & SCREENING
SOUTHBANK BANNERS S -
SOUTHBANK URBAN ART
SOUTHBANK MARKETING S -
SB RIVERWALK ENHANCEMENT
SB WATERFRONT ACTIVATION
SB DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT LOANS S 50,000
Plan Capital Projects
SS SOUTHBANK PARKING
SS PARKS ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION S -
RELOCATION OF RC UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK
FLAGLER AVE. SHARED STREET
SB RIVER & TRIBUTARY ACCESS
ST JOHNS RIVER PARK RESTAURANT S 1,500,000
Plan Professional Services
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES S 278,984
SS UNALLOCATED PLAN AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURES S 503,425
Total Plan Authorized Expenditures: S 2,332,409
TOTAL EXPENDITURES S 7,818,470
TOTAL REVENUES LESS TOTAL EXPENDITURES S -

Ad Valorem Taxes based on projections received from Property Appraisal Office.

Investment Pool Earnings has been updated to reflect the amount calculated by the Budget Office using the

Cash Methodology approved by the Council Auditors.

Superv Alloc. First column based on Staff Salaries & Benefits spreadsheet completed by G. Parola. Second Column calculated by Budget Officer.

The Strand Bond Interest & Principal amounts based on Treasury's Amortization Schedule

SS Future Year Debt Reduction has been reduced to $40k from the $100k approved by Board in April since
approx $60k will be transferred into the account via Res. 06-03 & Res. 06-10 which will carryover to FY25.

Unallocated Plan Authorized Expenditures - Amount is determined to balance the budget and will be re-

allocated as approved by the Board.

JUNE 4, 2024

VERSION 5



TAB I1I.C.x
RESOLUTION 2024-06-12 45 W BAY STREET FACADE GRANT




RESOLUTION 2024-06-12

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
(“DIA”) ACTING AS THE COMBINED NORTHBANK COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (“GRANTOR”) APPROVING THE AWARD
OF DIA STOREFRONT FACADE GRANT AGREEMENT TO 45 BAY
STREET, LLC (“APPLICANT OR GRANTEE”); AUTHORIZING THE
CEO OF THE DIA TO NEGOTIATE A GRANT AGREEMENT;
AUTHORIZING THE DIA CEO TO EXECUTE SUCH AGREEMENT;
AND FINDING THAT THE DEVELOPMENT PLAN IS CONSISTENT
WITH THE DIA’S BUSINESS INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT
PLAN (“BID PLAN”) AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, at their June 18, 2020 meeting the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”)
approved Resolution 2020-06-02 establishing the DIA Storefront Fagade Grant Program, to
provide funding for the improvement of storefronts, and, if applicable, second story facades, in the
Downtown Jacksonville Historic District to activate the streetscape and the overall revitalization
of Downtown Jacksonville, with funding provided through the Downtown Northbank CRA
Redevelopment Trust Fund; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant owns eligible property located at 45 W. Bay Street (RE#
073664-0000) and applied for funding under the DIA Storefront Fagade Grant Program to facilitate
improvements to the exterior of the building; and

WHEREAS, the application was reviewed by the DIA staff, found to be consistent with
program guidelines and the BID Plan and CRA Plan for Downtown; and

WHEREAS, 45 West Bay Street is a Locally Designated Landmark which will require a
Certificate of Appropriateness for any exterior changes issued by the City of Jacksonville’s
Planning and Development Department; and

WHEREAS, the DIA Strategic Implementation Committee, at their meeting of June 14,
2024, voted to recommend approval of the application to the DIA Board; and

WHEREAS, to assist the Grantee in making renovations to the facade of the commercial
building located at 45 W. Bay Street (“the Project”) the DIA proposes to provide a Grant in an
amount not to exceed SIXTY-NINE THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED NINETY-TWO AND NO
CENTS ($69,392.00) to the Grantee; and



RESOLUTION 2024-06-12

WHEREAS, the financial assistance to the Project will be in the form of the proposed
terms and incentives on the Term Sheet, attached as Exhibit A to this Resolution; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority:

Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are
incorporated herein by this reference.

Section 2. The DIA hereby finds that the Project is supported by the following Goal(s)
and Strategic Objective(s) of the BID Plan:

e Goal Number 1: Increase commercial office utilization, occupancy, and job growth to
reinforce Downtown as the region’s epicenter for business.
= Improve the occupancy rates of existing Downtown commercial office buildings.
= Facilitate restoration and rehabilitation of Downtown’s historic building stock for
productive commercial office use.

e Goal Number 4: Increase the vibrancy of Downtown for residents and visitors through arts,
culture, history, sports, theater, events, parks, and attractions.
= Create and promote a consistent brand for Downtown that conveys a sense of
excitement and within the boundary of Downtown foster distinct neighborhood
identities that evoke a unique sense of place.
e Goal Number 5: Improve the safety, accessibility, and wellness of Downtown Jacksonville
and cleanliness and maintenance of public spaces for residents, workers, and visitors.
= Support a clean and safe Downtown 24-7, including the work of Downtown Vision
Inc.

= Enforce proper maintenance of private property.
= Promote safe and equitable access to all Downtown facilities by improving access

to buildings and other properties, amenities, transit, events, and attractions; by
eliminating obstacles; and by designing for all ages and abilities.

Section 3. The DIA hereby awards a DIA Storefront Fagcade Grant to Grantee in an
amount not to exceed $69,392.00 from the Combined Northbank TID in accordance with the terms
of the term sheet attached hereto as Exhibit A.

Section 4. The Chief Executive Officer is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute
the contracts necessary to document this approval and otherwise take all additional actions

necessary to effectuate the purposes of this Resolution.

Section 5. The Effective Date of this Resolution is the date of execution of this
Resolution by the Chair of the DIA Board.

Page 2 of 8



RESOLUTION 2024-06-12

(Continued on following page)

WITNESS: DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
Witness Jim Citrano, Chairman Date
VOTE: In Favor: Opposed: Abstained:

Page 3 of 8



RESOLUTION 2024-06-12

EXHIBIT A - TERM SHEET
Resolution 2024-06-12

45 Bay Street, LLC

45 West Bay Street
Facade Grant

Project Name: 45 West Bay St.
Applicant: 45 Bay Street, LLC
Kevin Gay, Partner
Jesse Kraker, Partner
Chris Weaver, Property Manager
Estimated Rehabilitation Budget: $155,740
Eligible Facade Improvement Costs: $138,785
Maximum Facade Grant Funding: $69,392

Project: Exterior renovations to 45 W Bay Street in accordance with the application received, materially
consistent with images and narrative found in FIGURE 1., subject to DIA Board approval.

DIA Funding: No more than $69,392, through the Downtown Northbank Combined CRA.
Infrastructure: No City of Jacksonville or CRA infrastructure funding or support is requested.
Land: No City of Jacksonville or CRA land or building is requested.

Loans: No further City of Jacksonville or CRA loans have been requested.

Facade Grant:

e  Maximum funding limited to the lesser of 50% of actual costs incurred on eligible improvements
as supported by invoices as approved by the DIA, or $69,392.

e Eligible costs are those outlined in Figure 2 below and are further limited to expenditures made
on improvements to the exterior walls facing Bay Street.

e The Grant will be funded upon submission of a funding request form following completion of
the work.

e Work shall be inspected for compliance with the application as submitted, and all invoices must
be submitted for satisfactory review and approval by DIA Staff.

e The Grant approval is contingent upon the following:

1. Only work on the street-facing storefront as outlined in the application submitted is
eligible for reimbursement.

Page 4 of 8



RESOLUTION 2024-06-12

2. Applicant must be in good standing with the City (no unpaid taxes, Municipal Code
Compliance outstanding citation on any property of applicant, outstanding defaults on
any City contract, or previous uncured grant defaults or non-compliance).

3. The property being improved may not have any outstanding liens or violations.

4. Applicant must not be engaged in an active lawsuit with or have an unresolved claim from
or against the City or its agencies that is related to the property from which the grant is
sought or other similar rehabilitation grants.

5. Applicant agrees to utilize City-approved JSEBs for renovation work associated with the
grant where possible.

6. Must maintain the improvements in good repair.

7. All improvements must adhere to Downtown Overlay Zone and Downtown District Use
and Form Regulations, and DDRB approvals, as applicable.

8. If at any point the space is not occupied, the Applicant shall utilize its best efforts to
continue to activate the streetscape. This can be accomplished through temporarily
attaching art to the windows, utilizing the storefront space as an art installation or
exhibition, or other creative efforts to address street activation.

Performance Schedule:

1.

Facade Grant Agreement or appropriate loan document to be executed not later than six (6)
months of approval by the DIA Board which will establish the Facade Grant Agreement Effective
Date.

Commencement of Construction of Facade Improvements: Within three (3) months following the
Facade Grant Agreement Effective Date, Applicant commits to commencement of construction,
meaning receipt of all required approvals, permitting, and closing on all required financing to
allow the start of construction activities and has begun work in earnest.

Substantial Completion: Within twelve (12) months following Commencement of Construction as
defined above.

The DIA CEO will have authority to extend this Performance Schedule, at the CEQ’s sole discretion,
for up to three (3) cumulative months for good cause shown by the Applicant. Any extensions to
the Commencement Date shall have the same effect of extending the Substantial Completion
Date simultaneously.

Conditions:

This Term Sheet is limited by the following conditions:

1.

2.

3.

Downtown Investment Authority to receive copies of any necessary permits, invoices, cancelled
checks or documentation from other methods of payment, and other items as may be requested
by the DIA in its sole discretion as evidence of eligible expenditures; and

Annual reporting required to demonstrate compliance with terms and conditions as approved;
and

There may be additional terms, conditions, rights, responsibilities, warranties, and obligations for
both parties which shall be determined in a later negotiated mutually agreeable written contract.

Page 5 of 8



LELIE Y

RESOLUTION 2024-06-12

FIGURE 1. FACADE IMPROVEMENTS

:

TR St

=S . ¥l
e 2

i
',‘?'\ - ..
v '.t.-/h‘&_?\?x"'i
L) N ;
[ " N Ay s
v : .\\\“.§ "'k o

Iﬂ o

ta
|

i‘,.

Page 6 of 8

O’ FACADE ELEVATION
SCALE. 378" = 158



RESOLUTION 2024-06-12

FIGURE 1. FACADE IMPROVEMENTS (cont.)

KEYFLAN ELEVATION NOTES

A,

H.

REPAIR, RECONSTRUCT AND REPAINT EXISTING
PLANTERS AS REGUIRED. PROVIDE NEW PLANTINGS,
TTP

REPAINT ENTIRE FACADE WHICH SHALL INCLUDE
BLOCK, BRICK, WOOD PANELS, WOOD TRIM AND
PLANTERS. PAINT COLOR TED,

RESEAL EXISTING WINDOWS AS REGUIRED, TYP
RESURFACE FLOORING AT ENTRY

REPLACE EXISTING LIGHTING WITH NEW AS
SFECIFIED, TTF

FROVIDE NEW BLADE SlGNAGE
FPROVIDE NEW BUILDING ADDRESS LETTERING

REFAINT WINDOW FEAMES, REFAIR OR REPLACE
ANT DAMASED WoOD TEIM AS REGUIRED, TTF

REEPLACE ANT EUSTED METAL CAPS AS REGUIRED.
IF REFLACEMENT NOT NEEDED, REFAINT AS
SCHEDULED, TTF

EEPAIE AND REFINISH EXISTING SCONCES, TTF

EE-GROUT EDGE OF BUILDING WHERE BRICK MEETS
MU, TYF

EEPAIE, EEPAINT EXITING DAMASED MASONEY

EEPAINT EXISTING CEILING AT ENTRY. FROWVIDE
NEW LIGHT FIXTURES, TTF

FEEMOWE RBUST AND EEFAINT EXISTING CORENICE.
HEPLACE AS REQUIEED, TTF

FROVIDE NEW IRON GATE AT ENTEY. DESIGN TBD
PROVIDE NEW SKINGS DOORS AT UTILITY CLOSET
GG TO PEOVIDE FEOVISIONS FOR NEW EXTERIOK

SECURITT CAMERA. COORDIMATE WITH SWNER
SFECS OF EGQUIPMENT

Page 7 of 8



RESOLUTION 2024-06-12

FIGURE 2. PROPOSED EXPENDITURES

Item Cost Eligible? | Eligible Costs
Dumpsters $1,455.00 n $ -
Temp Protection $1,200.00 y $ 1,200.00
Demolition $750.00 y $ 750.00
Repair, Reconstruct, Repaint Existing Planters $115,121.00 y $ 115,121.00
Repaint Entire Facade (Included Above) $0.00 y $ -
Reseal Existing Windows (Included Above) $0.00 y $ -
Resurface Flooring at Entry (Included Above) $0.00 y $ -
Repair/Repaint Existing Window Frames (Included Above) $0.00 y $ -
Replace Existing Metal Coping (Included Above) $0.00 y $ -
Repair/Refinish Existing Sconces (Included Above) $0.00 y $ -
Regrout Brick at Building Edge (Included Above) $0.00 y $ -
Repair/Repaint Damaged Masonry (Included Above) $0.00 y $ -
Repaint Existing Entry Ceiling $0.00 y $ -
Remove Rust, Repaint Existing Cornice (Included Above) $0.00 y $ -
Building Lettering (Allowance) $300.00 y $ 300.00
Building Blade Sign (Allowance) $2,500.00 y $ 2,500.00
Iron Gate (Allowance) $10,000.00 y $ 10,000.00
Utility Closet Swing Doors (Allowance) $3,500.00 y $ 3,500.00
Electrical $5,414.00 y $ 5,414.00
General Conditions/Overhead/Fees $15,500.00 n $ -
Permits $0.00 y $ -
TOTAL $155,740.00 $ 138,785.00

Page 8 of 8




SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
RESOLUTION 2024-06-12 45 W BAY STREET FACADE GRANT STAFF REPORT




Project Name:
Applicant:

Project Location:

DIA STRATEGIC IMPLEMENTATION COMMITTEE

STAFF REPORT - FACADE GRANT

Estimated Rehabilitation Budget:

Eligible Fagcade Improvement Costs:

Maximum Facade Grant Funding:

45 West Bay Street

45 Bay Street, LLC

Kevin Gay, Partner

Jesse Kraker, Partner

Chris Weaver, Property Manager

45 West Bay Street
Jacksonville, Florida 32202

$155,740
$138,785
$ 69,392

Project Description: The applicant, 45 Bay Street, LLC, has owned the building at the same address since
2013. Over those years it has housed a number of businesses with Urban Grind, a Retail Enhancement

Grant recipientin
2014 being its oldest
tenant. It’s home to
Women at Werk and
Vivian Williams Law.
The property is
located in the Central
Core neighborhood
next door to Regions
Bank and across from
the 1 Independent
office building, fka
Wells Fargo. Itis atwo
story building built
between 1902 and
1909, with some work
by Henry Klutho, for
the H. and W.B Drew
Company.

T

‘?ﬁ.

s e

= = — ¥

PN

-
e

u:“ N

d

C)Fm ELEVATION
SCALE. 28" = 15"



The applicant proposes improvements to the historic fagade to include
repairing and restoring planters, repainting the entire fagcade, resealing
windows, replacing and repairing lighting, new signage, restoring the

cornices and repairing masonry as needed.

Figure 1. — Rehabilitation Budget

Item Cost Eligible? | Eligible Costs
Dumpsters $1,455.00 n $ -
Temp Protection $1,200.00 y $ 1,200.00
Demolition $750.00 y $ 750.00
Repair, Reconstruct, Repaint Existing Planters $115,121.00 y $ 115,121.00
Repaint Entire Fagade (Included Above) $0.00 y $ -
Reseal Existing Windows (Included Above) $0.00 y $ -
Resurface Flooring At Entry (Included Above) $0.00 y $ -
Repair/Repaint Existing Window Frames (Included

Above) $0.00 y $ -
Replace Existing Metal Coping (Included Above) $0.00 y $ -
Repair/Refinish Existing Sconces (Included Above) $0.00 y $ -
Regrout Brick at Building Edge (Included Above) $0.00 y $ -
Repair/Repaint Damaged Masonry (Included Above) $0.00 y $ -
Repaint Existing Entry Ceiling $0.00 y $ -
Remove Rust, Repaint Existing Cornice (Included

Above) $0.00 y $ -
Building Lettering (Allowance) $300.00 y $ 300.00
Building Blade Sign (Allowance) $2,500.00 y $ 2,500.00
Iron Gate (Allowance) $10,000.00 y $ 10,000.00
Utility Closet Swing Doors (Allowance) $3,500.00 y $ 3,500.00
Electrical $5,414.00 y $ 5,414.00
General Conditions/Overhead/Fees $15,500.00 n $ -
Permits $0.00 y $ -
TOTAL $155,740.00 $ 138,785.00

The proposed renovations have been reviewed and approved administratively by the Downtown

Development Review Board.

PAGE 2 OF 4




Program Considerations:
In review of this application, it is determined that the property
and applicant meet the following requirements:

1. The property was finished in 1909 and meets the
program requirement of being a minimum of 25 years
old.

2. The gross facade of the structure is 2,210 (52”x42.5’)
and is eligible as a two-story building. The facade is
also eligible for the “contributing structure boost”.

3. Expenditures related to the facade are eligible for
reimbursement as detailed further in the Exhibit A Term
Sheet to Resolution 2024-06-xx.

4. Inaccordance with Fagade Grant Guidelines:
a. Propertytaxes are current, and the property has
contributed to Duval County ad valorem for
more than five years.

“Only storefront facades that have
street frontage on a public street are
eligible. “Storefront Facade” refers to
the exterior facade of entire ground
floor fronting the sidewalk and public
street. The second story of the
building may be eligible if the
architectural details and construction
materials of the second story are
most similar to the first story when
compared to the rest of the building,
or if the building is only two-stories
tall.”

b. Improvements to the property will be made in accordance with all applicable codes and
permits, as approved by the DDRB Staff. Staff can approve this type of project without DDRB
review and approval per SUBPART H. - DOWNTOWN OVERLAY ZONE AND DOWNTOWN
DISTRICT USE AND FORM REGULATIONS, Sec. 656.361.7.1

c. Applicant is in good standing with the City, the property is not subject to outstanding

Municipal Code Compliance liens or violations.

d. The property has not received other COJ or DIA Funding that would be duplicative with this

project.
Eligible Square Standard
Type Foot Funding
. 2210X $30 =
52’ wide x 42.5’
Facade tall=2210 sq ft $66,300

Total Maximum

Contributing funding via sq

Structure footage
Boost calculation00
2210X $2 =
$4,420 $70,720

Funding eligibility is determined as the lesser of 50% of eligible costs ($138,785 X .50% = $69,392), the
square footage calculation show above ($70,720) or the maximum funding limit of $75,000. Accordingly,
maximum eligibility is determined to be $69,392 for these proposed fagade improvements.

Funding and compliance under the DIA Storefront Fagade Grant in the amount of $69,392 are subject to:

e The Facade Grant Agreement, or appropriate forgivable loan document, is to be executed not later
than six (6) months from approval by the DIA Board which will establish the Fagade Grant Agreement

PAGE 3 OF 4



Effective Date. Thereafter, Commencement of Construction of Fagade Improvements shall occur
within three (3) months following the Fagade Grant Agreement Effective Date.

The Fagade Grant Agreement shall allow the DIA CEO to extend the performance schedule for up to
three (3) months in her sole discretion for good cause shown by Applicant.

Disbursement will be made following completion and inspection of the work by DIA Staff, to be
supported by invoices submitted that document the actual expenditure made to complete the
project substantially in accordance with the application as submitted.

Must maintain the improvements in good repair and make ad valorem tax payments for a minimum
period of five years from the date of funding.

If at any point the space is not occupied, the Property Owner shall utilize its best efforts to continue
to activate the streetscape. This can be accomplished through temporarily attaching art on the
windows, utilizing the storefront space as an art installation or exhibition, or other creative efforts to
address street activation.

Other terms and conditions as found in the Ex. A Term Sheet to resolution 2024-06-xx.

PAGE 4 OF 4



TAB IlI.D
RESOLUTION 2024-06-04 NORTHBANK FY 24-25 REVISED PROPOSED BUDGET




RESOLUTION 2024-06-04

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY AS
THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOMENT AGENCY FOR THE COMBINED
NORTHBANK COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA ADOPTING
FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 BUDGET FOR THE COMBINED DOWNTOWN
EAST AND NORTHWEST TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT, ATTACHED
HERETO AS EXHIBIT A; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) is the Community
Redevelopment Agency for the Northbank Community Redevelopment Area (“CRA”) pursuant
to Ordinance 2012-0364; and

WHEREAS, as the Community Redevelopment Agency, the DIA is responsible for
developing, recommending, and implementing the budget for the Combined Northbank
Community Redevelopment Area; and

WHEREAS, Pursuant to Section 106.204(c), Jacksonville Ordinance Code, the budgets
for Community Redevelopment Agencies are not due until June 20™; however, in order to allow
time for revenue projections to be developed, the City requested and the DIA provided a proposed
budget for the Combined Northbank CRA via Resolution 2024-04-03; and

WHEREAS, a revised budget is being presented because there is a change of greater than
$ 100,000.00 from the budget as in Exhibit “A” adopted in April by the DIA Board; and two
revenue lines to be included in the budget,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority:

Section 1. The Combined Downtown East and Northwest Tax Increment District
budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 attached hereto as Exhibit ‘B’ is hereby adopted by the DIA.

Section 2. The CEO is authorized to submit this budget and make necessary changes
thereto as required by the Budget Office with an adjusting change in the Unallocated Plan
Authorized Expenditures as required without further Board approval.

Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the Chair
of the DIA Board.

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]



RESOLUTION 2024-06-04
PAGE 2 OF 2

WITNESS: DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Jim Citrano, Chair Date

VOTE: In Favor: Opposed: Abstained:



EXHIBITA 1
RESOLUTION 2024-06-04
COMPARISON TO ADOPTED IN APRIL

APFf;OZC{ETDSBY FY 24/25 REVISED -
Combined Northbank CRA FY 24 / 25 Budget S PROPOSED
VIA RES.04-03 VIA RES. 06-04
2 Revenue
3
n Ad Valorem Revenue S 14,091,010 S 14,052,011
5 Northwest TID $ 9,450,125 ' | $ 9,074,987
6 Northeast TID $ 4,640,885 [ | $ 4,977,024
7 Debt Repayment (Lynch 11-E - Principal) S 457,019 S 457,019
8 Debt Repayment (Lynch 11-E - Interest) S 342,981 S 342,981
9 Debt Repayment (Carling Loan - Principal) S 346,945 S 346,945
10 Debt Repayment (Carling Loan - Interest) S 159,542 S 159,542
11 Investment Pool Earnings S 500,000 |[® |¢ 1,175,423
12 Sports Complex Garage S 975,000 |? S 975,000
13 Adams Street Garage S 675,000 3A S 675,000
VSN Courthouse Garage $ 200,000 ** | S 200,000
L3 Churchwell Loft Lease s -PC1S -
16 Courthouse Garage Tenant Lease S 99,640 |*° S 99,640
WA Northflorida Land Trust Lease (Begin Mar 15, 2025) $ 38,243 I’ | ¢ 38,243
18 Johnson Commons ($100/day assessed damages) S - S 24,000
19 Johnson Commons (50/50 Split sale of Townhomes excess $320k) S - S 20,000
20 Total Revenue:| $ 17,885,380 S 18,565,804
21
22 Administrative Expenditures
23 ANNUAL INDEPENDENT AUDIT S 2,500 S 2,500
24 SUPERVISION ALLOCATION S 982,935 [ S 954,845
25 Total Administrative Expenditures:| $ 985,435 S 957,345
26
27 Financial obligations
28 220 Riverside (Mid-American) REV Grant S 506,000 S 506,000
29 Pope & Land / Brooklyn (leg: 2012-703; 2013-288) S 480,000 S 480,000
30 Lofts at Jefferson Station (DIA resolution 2017-10-05) S 69,056 S 69,056
MPS Subsidy Downtown Garages S - S -
32 Parking Lease - JTA / Fidelity
33 Lynch Bldg. Loan Repayment S 800,000 S 800,000
Vista Brooklyn-200 Riverside (REV) $ 605,000 $ 605,000
Vista Brooklyn - 200 Riverside (Supplemental REV) S - S -
Riverside Lodging /Park View Plaza (Residence Inn REV) S 151,422 S 151,422
Lofts at Brooklyn S 73,212 S 73,212
FIS REV Grant $ 1,200,000 [ |3 1,200,000
Fincantieri REV Grant (New FY 25) $ 87,000 $ 87,000
40 Miscellaneous Insurance (Leased Garages) S 275,000 S 323,195
41 MPS -Debt Management Fund - Interest S 485,676 S 485,676
42 MPS - Debt Management Fund -Principal S 1,500,000 S 1,500,000
MPS SETTLEMENT EXPENSES - OPERATING LEASE - LEASEHOLD
43 IMPROVEMENTS Capital Reserve S 25,000 > S 25,000
VI Sports Complex Garage $ 250,000 [** |[¢ 250,000
VB /\dams Street Garage $ 200,000 [* |[¢ 200,000
T3 Courthouse Garage $ 400,000 | |$ 400,000
47 Total Financial Obligations:| $ 7,107,366 S 7,155,561
48
APRIL 4, 2024

VERSION 2




1/1A

1B

3,A-B

3C

3D

3E

3F, 3G

4A

6A-C

EXHIBITA 2
RESOLUTION 2024-06-04
COMPARISON TO ADOPTED IN APRIL

Future Year Debt Reduction S 150,000 S 150,000

NB Future Year Debt Reduction S 150,000 S 150,000

Plan Authorized Expenditures

Plan programs

NB RETAIL ENHANCEMENT S - S -

NB COMMERCIAL REVITALIZATION PROGRAM S - S -

NB DEVELOPMENT LOANS

NB FACADE GRANT PROGRAM $ - $ -

NB PARKING SCREENING S - S -

NB SMALL SCALE RESIDENTIAL S - S -

NB URBAN ART S 250,000 S 250,000

NB WATERFRONT ACTIVATION

NB MARKETING S - S -

NB BANNERS S - S -

NB SUBSIDIES AND CONTRIBUTIONS TO PRIVATE ORGANIZATIONS S - S -

NB EVENTS

Plan Capital Projects

NB TWO WAY CONVERSION - FORSYTH & ADAMS S 6,500,000 S 6,500,000

HISTORIC SHOTGUN HOUSES REHABILITATION

NB PARKS ACQUISISITON AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

NB NEIGHBORHOOD STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS

NB RIVERWALK ENHANCEMENTS & SIGNAGE

NB SHIPYARDS WEST CRA PROJECT

NB LIBERTY STREET IMPROVEMENTS

NB LAVILLA HERITAGE TRAIL & GATEWAY ENTRANCES S 500,000 S 500,000

MCCOQOYS CREEK PARK CRA

NB WAYFARER SIGNAGE (NEW) S 500,000 S 500,000

RIVERFRONT PLAZA PROJECTION AND SOUND

HISTORIC DOWNTOWN LANDMARK & DISTRICT SIGNAGE

RIVERFRONT PLAZA RESTAURANT S 1,000,000 S 1,000,000

DUVAL STREET STRUCTURE DEMOLITION S - S -

JEA ELECTRICAL DUCT BANK RELOCATION S - S -

Plan Professional Services

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES S 250,000 S 250,000

NB UNALLOCATED PLAN AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURES** S 642,579 S 1,302,898
Total Plan Authorized Expenditures:| $ 9,642,579 S 10,302,898

TOTAL EXPENDITURES S 17,885,380 S 18,565,804

TOTAL REVENUES LESS TOTAL EXPENDITURES S - S -

Ad Valorem Taxes based on projections received from Property Appraisal Office.
Investment Pool Earnings has been updated to reflect the amount calculated by the Budget Office using the Cash Methodology approved by the
Council Auditors.

Projected Revenue from Reef for FY25 for all three garages based calculations submitted by Todd H. round down per Lori B.

The Churchwell Lofts Lease requires Landscape & Screening for parking lot by July 1, 2024; est. cost $24,352; a rent credit
will be given for FY25, therefore no rent is expected to be collected, per John C email 3/29/24.

The Tenant Revenue total amount of $99,639.50 is based on three tenant leases: Kajal Ventures $44,137.56; Rainbow
Notary $30,089.46 & Shafer Law $25,412.48, Per John C email dated 3/29/24

North FL Land Trust - Per lease rent payments will begin March 15, 2025 @5$5,925 /mo. First month is prorated.

Projecting Revenue for Johnsons Commons for FY25, per J. Crescimbeni.

Superv Alloc. First column based on Staff Salaries & Benefits spreadsheet completed by G. Parola. Second Column calculated by Budget Officer.
FIS Rev Grant projection for FY25 increased based on amount paid for FY24

Per Agreement, $25k is required to be deposited into the Capital Reserve Account

FY25 Projected Operating Expenditures for all three garages based calculations submitted by Todd H. rounded up per Lori B.

APRIL 4, 2024
VERSION 2



EXHIBIT B 1
RESOLUTION 2024-06-04

FY 24/25 REVISED -

PROPOSED VIA

Combined Northbank CRA FY 24 / 25 Budget

1 RES. 06-04
2 Revenue
3
4 Ad Valorem Revenue S 14,052,011
5 Northwest TID S 9,074,987
6 Northeast TID S 4,977,024
7 Debt Repayment (Lynch 11-E - Principal) S 457,019
8 Debt Repayment (Lynch 11-E - Interest) S 342,981
9 Debt Repayment (Carling Loan - Principal) S 346,945
10 Debt Repayment (Carling Loan - Interest) S 159,542
11 Investment Pool Earnings S 1,175,423
12 Sports Complex Garage S 975,000
13 Adams Street Garage S 675,000
14 Courthouse Garage S 200,000
15 Churchwell Loft Lease S -
16 Courthouse Garage Tenant Lease S 99,640
17 Northflorida Land Trust Lease (Begin Mar 15, 2025) S 38,243
18 Johnson Commons ($100/day assessed damages) S 24,000
19 Johnson Commons (50/50 Split sale of Townhomes excess $320k) S 20,000
20 Total Revenue: S 18,565,804
21
22 Administrative Expenditures
23 ANNUAL INDEPENDENT AUDIT S 2,500
24 SUPERVISION ALLOCATION S 954,845
25 Total Administrative Expenditures: S 957,345
26
27 Financial obligations
28 220 Riverside (Mid-American) REV Grant S 506,000
29 Pope & Land / Brooklyn (leg: 2012-703; 2013-288) S 480,000
30 Lofts at Jefferson Station (DIA resolution 2017-10-05) S 69,056
31 MPS Subsidy Downtown Garages S -
32 Parking Lease - JTA / Fidelity
33 Lynch Bldg. Loan Repayment S 800,000
34 Vista Brooklyn-200 Riverside (REV) S 605,000
35 Vista Brooklyn - 200 Riverside (Supplemental REV) S -
36 Riverside Lodging /Park View Plaza (Residence Inn REV) S 151,422
37 Lofts at Brooklyn S 73,212
38 FIS REV Grant S 1,200,000
39 Fincantieri REV Grant (New FY 25) S 87,000
40 Miscellaneous Insurance (Leased Garages) S 323,195
41 MPS -Debt Management Fund - Interest S 485,676
42 MPS - Debt Management Fund -Principal S 1,500,000
June 4, 2024

VERSION 3



EXHIBIT B
RESOLUTION 2024-06-04
REVISED PROPOSED BUDGET

MPS SETTLEMENT EXPENSES - OPERATING LEASE - LEASEHOLD
IMPROVEMENTS Capital Reserve

25,000

Sports Complex Garage

250,000

Adams Street Garage

200,000

Courthouse Garage

400,000

Total Financial Obligations:

v n [n|n |n

7,155,561

Future Year Debt Reduction

150,000

NB Future Year Debt Reduction

wn | »

150,000

Plan Authorized Expenditures

Plan programs

NB RETAIL ENHANCEMENT

NB COMMERCIAL REVITALIZATION PROGRAM

wn

NB DEVELOPMENT LOANS

NB FACADE GRANT PROGRAM

NB PARKING SCREENING

NB SMALL SCALE RESIDENTIAL

NB URBAN ART

wn|niwnin

250,000

NB WATERFRONT ACTIVATION

NB MARKETING

W

NB BANNERS

wn

NB SUBSIDIES AND CONTRIBUTIONS TO PRIVATE ORGANIZATIONS

NB EVENTS

Plan Capital Projects

NB TWO WAY CONVERSION - FORSYTH & ADAMS

6,500,000

HISTORIC SHOTGUN HOUSES REHABILITATION

NB PARKS ACQUISISITON AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

NB NEIGHBORHOOD STREETSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS

NB RIVERWALK ENHANCEMENTS & SIGNAGE

NB SHIPYARDS WEST CRA PROJECT

NB LIBERTY STREET IMPROVEMENTS

NB LAVILLA HERITAGE TRAIL & GATEWAY ENTRANCES

500,000

MCCOYS CREEK PARK CRA

NB WAYFARER SIGNAGE (NEW)

500,000

RIVERFRONT PLAZA PROJECTION AND SOUND

HISTORIC DOWNTOWN LANDMARK & DISTRICT SIGNAGE

RIVERFRONT PLAZA RESTAURANT

1,000,000

DUVAL STREET STRUCTURE DEMOLITION

W

JEA ELECTRICAL DUCT BANK RELOCATION

wn

Plan Professional Services

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

250,000

NB UNALLOCATED PLAN AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURES**

1,302,898

Total Plan Authorized Expenditures:

10,302,898

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

18,565,804

TOTAL REVENUES LESS TOTAL EXPENDITURES

'U"-u)..u,.-(.n-m

June 4, 2024
VERSION 3



EXHIBIT B 3
RESOLUTION 2024-06-04
REVISED PROPOSED BUDGET

1/1A S . . .
/ Ad Valorem Taxes based on projections received from Property Appraisal Office.
Investment Pool Earnings has been updated to reflect the amount calculated by the Budget Office using the Cash Methodology
1B . .
approved by the Council Auditors.
3,A-B
’ Projected Revenue from Reef for FY25 for all three garages based calculations submitted by Todd H. round down per Lori B.
The Churchwell Lofts Lease requires Landscape & Screening for parking lot by July 1, 2024; est. cost $24,352; a rent credit will be
C . . .
3 given for FY25, therefore no rent is expected to be collected, per John C email 3/29/24.
30 The Tenant Revenue total amount of $99,639.50 is based on three tenant leases: Kajal Ventures $44,137.56; Rainbow Notary $30,089.46 &
Shafer Law $25,412.48, Per John C email dated 3/29/24
3E . . . .
North FL Land Trust - Per lease rent payments will begin March 15, 2025 @5$5,925 /mo. First month is prorated.
3F, 36 Projecting Revenue for Johnsons Commons for FY25, per J. Crescimbeni.
4
Superv Alloc. Calculated by the Budget Officer.
4A L . .
FIS Rev Grant projection for FY25 increased based on amount paid for FY24
5 . . s .
Per Agreement, $25k is required to be deposited into the Capital Reserve Account
6A-C

FY25 Projected Operating Expenditures for all three garages based calculations submitted by Todd H. rounded up per Lori B.

June 4, 2024
VERSION 3



TAB IIIL.E

RESOLUTION 2024-06-13 LAURA STREET TRIO
(PLACEHOLDER — RESOLUTION TO BE PROVIDED IF AND WHEN AVAILABLE)




TAB IV.A

MAY 15TH, 2024 DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES
APPROVAL




. A Downtown Investment Authority
; ) ‘ Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting
” JAX Wednesday, May 15th, 2024, 2:00 p.m.

INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES

DIA Board Members (BM): Jim Citrano, Board Chair; Sondra Fetner, Esq.; Patrick Krechowski,
Esq.; Micah Heavener; Melinda Powers, Esq.; Scott Wohlers, Braxton Gillam, Esq.; Carol
Worsham

Mayor’s Office: None

Council Members: None

DIA Staff: Lori Boyer, Chief Executive Officer; Steve Kelley, Director of Downtown Real Estate
and Development; Guy Parola, Director of Operations; Allan DeVault, Project Manager; Ava Hill,
Administrative Assistant

Office of General Counsel: John Sawyer, Esq.

I. CALLTOORDER

Board Chair Citrano called to order the Downtown Investment Authority Meeting at 2:38
PM.

II. DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

A. April 17th, 2024, DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY MEETING
MINUTES APPROVAL

Board Chair Citrano called for a vote to approve the meeting minutes.

Motion: Member Worsham motioned to approve the meeting minutes as
presented.
Second: Member Wohlers seconded the motion.
Vote: Aye: 8 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 8-0-0
B. CONSENT AGENDA

Board Chair Citrano called for a vote on the consent agenda which included
Resolutions 2024-05-07.

PAGE 1 OF 4



. A Downtown Investment Authority
; ) ‘ Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting
” JAX Wednesday, May 15th, 2024, 2:00 p.m.

INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Motion: Member Krechowski motioned to approve the consent agenda.
Second: Member Worsham seconded the motion.

Vote: Aye: 8 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0

C. RESOLUTION 2024-05-01 CEO CONTRACT

RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”)
AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION OF A NEW EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE DIA AND LORI N. BOYER, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(“CEO”), FOR A TERM OF ONE YEAR WITH THE OPTION TO EXTEND FOR UP
TO ONE ADDITIONAL YEAR; AUTHORIZING THE DIA GOVERNING BOARD
CHAIR TO EXECUTE AN “EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT” IN SUBSTANTIALLY
SIMILAR FORM TO THE EXISTING, AS AMENDED; PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

Mr. Guy Parola explained that the Governance Committee unanimously voted to extend
CEO Boyer’s contract for one full year with an additional year extension. He added that
the new contract would be treated as an extension of the existing contract and that all the
current conditions would remain in force.

Board Chair Citrano called for a motion on the resolution.

Motion: Member Krechowski motioned to approve Resolution 2024-05-01.
Seconded: = Member Worsham seconded the motion.

Board Chair Citrano opened the floor for discussion.

Member Gillam expressed his appreciation for CEO Boyer and stated that the DIA is
fortunate to have her.

Member Worsham agreed with Member Gillam’s comments and added that CEO Boyer is
exceptionally and uniquely qualified to perform the duties as CEO.

Member Heavner asked about for the total number and value of projects being managed by
the DIA. CEO Boyer responded that DIA is currently managing 71 projects with just over
$2 billion in projects under construction and just over $818 million in completed projects.
Member Heaver pointed out that there are significant risks to the taxpayer with these
projects and discussed the importance of allowing plenty of time for the transition.

PAGE 2 OF 4



B A Downtown Investment Authority
" AA ‘ Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting
v’ JAX Wednesday, May 15th, 2024, 2:00 p.m.

INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Member Wohlers expressed that he was pleased with CEO Boyer’s work in the Southbank
and that he supports extending her contract for another year.

Member Fetner expressed that she appreciated Member Heavener’s request and mentioned
that it’s helpful seeing the actual work that’s being done under CEO Boyer’s leadership.
She then pointed out that deals in the pipeline are just as important. CEO Boyer agreed
and added that they do take up a lot of time.

Member Powers echoed Member Wohler’s statements about the work on the Southbank
and mentioned that she is looking forward to the pipeline projects. She expressed that she
also supports the resolution to renew the CEO’s contract.
Board Chair Citrano expressed that he agreed with everyone’s comments. He added that
CEO Boyer wears many hats other than CEO and that it speaks to her commitment. Board
Chair Citrano also expressed that he fully supports the extension, and that CEO Boyer
deserves credit for DIA’s tremendous progress.
Board Chair Citrano called for a vote on the resolution.
Vote: Aye: 8 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY  8-0-0
Board Chair Citrano reminded everyone that there was Nominating Committee meeting held on
May 14™, 2024, and that the Board was supposed to vote on the recommended slate. He then gave
the floor to Member Gillam who shared the following recommendations:
» Patrick Krechowski — Chair
» Micah Heavener — Vice Chair
» Sondra Fetner — Secretary

Board Chair Citrano mentioned that he can contribute but felt that it was best for the new members
to step up in the leadership roles.

Board Chair Citrano then opened the floor for discussion.

Member Krechowski asked if there were any nominations from the floor, to which there were
none.

Board Chair Citrano called for a vote on the slate as presented.
Vote: Aye: 8 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0

PAGE 3 OF 4



. A Downtown Investment Authority
; ) ‘ Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting
” JAX Wednesday, May 15th, 2024, 2:00 p.m.

INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY  8-0-0

CEO Boyer mentioned that there was discussion about amending the bylaws concerning the
responsibilities of the Board Chair’s role as ex officio. It was recommended that the vice chair
also serve in the ex officio capacity to help with quorum requirements. She added that the DIA
may be getting additional appointees which would also help with quorum requirements.

Board Chair Citrano shared that there was a full slate of 9 board members when he joined the
Board, so there were less issues meeting the quorum requirement. He also mentioned that
accelerating the process to get a full board would be helpful.

Member Gillam mentioned that creating the process of the consent agenda meant more work for
committees and puts a greater burden on the chair when short on members.

Board Chair Citrano advised that the committee meetings were working meetings, less formal
than the Board meetings, and that he’s a big believer in the committee process. He then reiterated
the necessity of a full board.

III. CEO INFORMATIONAL BRIEFING
A. OLD AND NEW BUSINESS

Concerning new business, CEO Boyer mentioned that a number of individuals are
interested in the East Landing Lot. She advised the Board to expect individual
conversations and possibly discussion at the next REPD committee meeting geared around
creating a process and setting parameters for those interested individuals.

She also mentioned phones calls to the Board and previous discussions about the Riverfront
Plaza Development Pad and what would be included in the RFP. She advised the city’s
budget for the CIP Project for the park includes enough funding to for the pedestrian ramp
and the backside of the beer garden. So, there’s nothing that the development pad decision
will hold up. She then explained future decisions and how they would affect the project
moving forward.

B. DOWNTOWN PROJECT UPDATE AND CEO REPORT

Using a PowerPoint presentation, CEO Boyer described various project updates (see
below) and then reviewed performance measures.

» Media clarifications
» Parking: Beginning negotiations with Reef on new contract

PAGE 4 OF 4



Downtown Investment Authority
Downtown Investment Authority Hybrid Meeting

N "IJA‘X Wednesday, May 15th, 2024, 2:00 p.m.

INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

» Southbank PUD rezoning for Self-storage

» Architectural Services RFP is being scored and results should be available in the

next two weeks

Capital Projects Update

Development Updates

Pending Legislation

e 2023-0621 Second amendment to One Riverside was deferred by the
Developer

e 2024-0152 Self-Storage PUD Southbank application is filed

YV V VY

Board Chair Citrano advise that the initial special committee meeting was a very productive. He
spoke on the perception and promotion of the Downtown Core. He then thanked everyone for
being in attendance.

Board Member Krechowski mentioned that it was good to hear about all the things the DIA has
in the works and then asked for an update on the DORO Rise project. CEO Boyer responded that
the developer is ready to start reconstruction and looking for additional incentives. She explained
the details such as REV and completion grant requirements, underwriting terms, insurance, and
future conversations. Steve Kelley advised that he was expecting the necessary financial
information from the developer some time that week.

IV.  ADJOURNMENT
Seeing no further discussion, Board Chair Citrano adjourned the DIA meeting at 3:34 PM.
The written minutes for this meeting are only an overview of what was discussed. For verbatim

comments of this meeting, a recording is available upon request. Please contact Ava Hill at
avah(@coj.net to acquire a recording of the meeting.

PAGE 5 OF 4


mailto:avah@coj.net

TABIV.B
RESOLUTION 2024-06-11 SIP & STROLL CONTRIBUTION




RESOLUTION 2024-06-11

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
(“DIA”) AUTHORIZING THE AMENDMENT OF THE PREVIOUSLY
APPROVED SIP AND STROLL AGREEMENT WITH DOWNTOWN
VISION INC (“DVI”) IN ACCORDANCE WITH EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND
PROVIDING FOR A THIRTY-SIX THOUSAND DOLLAR ($36,000)
CONTRIBUTION TO DVI FOR A NEW SIP AND STROLL AGREEMENT
FOR EVENTS COMMENCING JANUARY 2025 IN ACCORDANCE WITH
EXHIBIT ‘B’; AUTHORIZING THESE FUNDS FROM THE DIA FISCAL
YEAR 2023-2024 ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET’S EVENT
CONTRIBUTION FUNDS; INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTIONS TO EFFECTUATE
THE PURPOSE OF THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the mission of the DIA is, “To drive growth in business and investment,
create a vibrant urban living environment and enhance quality of life in Downtown Jacksonville
through the transparent and responsible leveraging of public investments, assets, infrastructure,
and policy”; and

WHEREAS, at the suggestion of DIA staff and in collaboration with the COJ Department
of Parks, Recreation and Community Services, which manages the Southbank Riverwalk, DVI
developed a budget and plan for a monthly Sip and Stroll on the Southbank Riverwalk; and

WHEREAS, Sip and Stroll now occurs on nine (9) Third Thursdays on the Southbank
Riverwalk (Jan., Feb., March, April, May, Sept., Oct., Nov., Dec.), spanning from Friendship
Fountain to The Southbank Hotel, providing live music, food vendors, bars and a picnic area; and

WHEREAS, City Council via Ordinance 2021-0499 amended Chapter 55 to allow for DIA
to directly enter into agreements with Downtown Vision, Inc. for the programming of parks and
public spaces located within Downtown without further need for City Council approval; and

WHEREAS, DIA entered into an agreement with DVI for fiscal year 2023-2024,
encumbering fifty-four thousand dollars ($54,000) for ten (10) Sip and Stroll events at five
thousand four hundred dollars ($5,400) per event (Nov. *23, Dec. ’23, Jan. ’24, Feb. *24, March
’24, May 24, June ’24, July ’24, Aug. ’24, Sept. *24); and

WHEREAS, effective in 2024, DVI will exclude June, July and August in the monthly
programming series in light of challenges presented by heat and rain during the summer months;
and

WHEREAS, the cancellation of three events leaves sixteen thousand two hundred dollars
($16,200) remaining in the existing agreement between DIA and DVI for the 2023-2024 Sip and
Stroll program series; and

WHEREAS, staff recommends that the Board approve amendments to the existing
agreement in accordance with Exhibit ‘A’ that would extend the performance date of the agreement



RESOLUTION 2024-06-11
PAGE 2 OF 2

to cover the months of Oct. ‘24, Nov. ‘24, and Dec. ‘24, utilizing the remaining sixteen thousand
two hundred dollars ($16,200) encumbered pursuant to the existing agreement; and

WHEREAS, staff recommends that the Board approve a new agreement for events
commencing Jan. ‘25 utilizing thirty-six thousand dollars ($36,000) from the DIA fiscal year 2023-
2024 administrative budget’s event contribution funds to support the remainder of the 2024-2025
program series (Jan. ’25, Feb. ’25, March °25, April ’25, May ’25 and Sept. ’25), totaling six
thousand dollars ($6,000) per event in accordance with terms set forth in Exhibit ‘B’ attached
hereto.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Downtown Investment Authority:

Section 1. The DIA authorizes amendment of the existing agreement with DVI for Sip
and Stroll to eliminate the events scheduled for June ‘24, July ‘24 and Aug. ‘24, and to extend the
term of the agreement through Dec. ‘24, adding events for the months of Oct. 24, Nov. ’24, and
Dec. ‘24, in accordance with Exhibit ‘A’ attached hereto.

Section 2. The DIA authorizes execution of a new agreement and a payment of thirty-
six thousand dollars ($36,000) to DVI from the DIA fiscal year 2023-2024 administrative budget’s
event contribution funds to be used for production of the Sip and Stroll event series described on
Exhibit ‘B’ attached hereto, commencing Jan. ‘25.

Section 3. The DIA authorizes its Chief Executive Officer to take all necessary actions
to effectuate the purpose of this Resolution, including execution of an agreement for such services.

Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the Chair
of the DIA Board.
WITNESS: DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
Jim Citrano, Chair Date

VOTE: In Favor: Opposed: Abstained:



EXHIBIT A
TO RESOLUTION 2024-06-11

SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS SERVICES AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into this day of
Nevember, 20243 (“Effective Date”), by and between DOWNTOWN VISION, INC., a Florida
not for profit corporation (the “DVI”), and the DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY,
a community redevelopment agency on behalf of the DIA of Jacksonville (the “DIA”).

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the City of Jacksonville and DVI have previously entered into that certain
Municipal Services Agreement dated August 13, 2021, whereby DVI deploys resources to improve
the experience of downtown Jacksonville for those who live, work, visit and invest there, focusing
primarily on the on-the-ground street level experience in downtown Jacksonville. DVI also
operates the business improvement district as defined in the City’s Ordinance Code, and receives
assessments thereunder to utilize for the benefit of downtown Jacksonville;

WHEREAS, the DIA desires to provide funding to DVI for F¥-23-242023-2024 in the not
to exceed amount of $54,000 (the “Funds™) to partially offset costs attendant to its “Sip & Stroll”
program, comprised of programming 10 events on the Southbank Riverwalk from November, 2023
through SeptemberDecember, 2024 (the “Services”), as further described on Exhibit A attached
hereto; and

WHEREAS, this Agreement is authorized by DIA Resolutions 2023-10-05 and Resolution
2024-06-11.-

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants, conditions and agreements
contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Recitals. The parties hereto acknowledge the foregoing recitals are true and correct
and are incorporated herein by this reference.

2. Term; Termination. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective
Date of this Agreement and shall remain in effect until September-30,2024December 30, 2024
(the “Term”), unless terminated earlier by the parties pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.
Except as otherwise provided herein, the DIA may terminate this Agreement during the Term at
any time with or without cause upon five (5) days’ prior written notice to the other party.
Termination of this Agreement for any reason shall not release or discharge either party from any
obligation or liability accruing before the date of termination. DVI shall be entitled to only that
reimbursement earned for Services rendered in accordance with the terms of this Agreement prior
to and including the date of termination of this Agreement, however terminated, and shall not be
entitled to any continuation of reimbursement following such termination.




3. Services to be Provided by DVI. DVI shall perform the Services during the
Agreement term. If any services, functions or responsibilities not specifically described on Exhibit
A are necessary for the proper performance and provision of the Services, such services, functions
or responsibilities shall be deemed to be implied by and included within the Services to the same
extent and in the same manner as if specifically described herein.

5. Compensation. DVI shall be compensated for the services in the amount and as
set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto. The maximum indebtedness of the DIA for all costs, fees
and other obligations in connection with this Agreement is FIFTY-FOUR THOUSAND AND
NO/100 DOLLARS ($54,000.00). The DIA’s obligations under this Agreement are contingent
upon the availability of lawfully appropriated funds therefor.

6. Reserved.

7. Compliance with Laws. DVI shall comply with all present and future laws,
ordinances, orders, rules, regulations and requirements of the federal, state, county and municipal
governments or any of their departments, bureaus, boards, commissions and officials thereof with
respect to its activities in connection with this Agreement.

8. Independent Contractor; Limitations on Authority. DVI is an independent
contractor of the DIA. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to create an employment,
agency, joint venture or partnership relationship between DVI and the DIA or any other legal
arrangement that would impose liability upon one party for the act or failure to act of the other
party. As an independent contractor, DVI shall exercise independent judgment as to the precise
manner of performing the Services under this Agreement. DVI understands and agrees that: (a)
the DIA shall not withhold from any amounts payable hereunder any sums for the payment of
personal or other income taxes, unemployment insurance or social security; and (b) DVI1 is fully
and completely responsible for its own employment tax payments and workers’ compensation
insurance, social security and any other required tax payments or withholding. Neither party is
granted hereby, and neither party shall hold itself out as having, any right or authority to enter
into any contract, incur any liabilities, create any obligation or responsibility or make any
representation or warranty, express or implied, on behalf of or in the name of the other party, or
to otherwise bind the other party in any manner.

9. Reserved.

10.  Access to Books and Records. Until the expiration of three (3) years after the
furnishing of Services under this Agreement, DIA shall make available to the DIA in connection with
this Agreement, all Records as set forth on Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein by this
reference.

11. No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity. The parties acknowledge that the DIA is a
consolidated municipal and county political subdivision of the State of Florida. Nothing in this
Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as a waiver of the DIA’s or City’s common law sovereign
immunity any greater than the limited waiver set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes.




12. Breach/Termination.

a) If DVI breaches any term of this Agreement, including the duty to provide the Services within
the time specified, and fails to correct said breach within five (5) business days from receipt of
written notice of the breach, the DIA may terminate the whole or any part of this Agreement,
or exercise any other rights the DIA may have at law or in equity.

b) Termination of this Agreement for breach shall be upon no less than 24 hours’ notice in writing
if the breach has not been corrected within five (5) business days after notice of the breach.

c) Upon receipt of a notice of termination, except as otherwise directed, DVI shall:

1. Cease providing Services under this Agreement on the date and to the extent specified in
the notice of termination.

2. Place no further orders or subcontracts for the performance of the Services for the Program.

3. Terminate all orders and subcontracts that relate to the performance of the Services for the
Sip & Stroll program.

4. Prepare all necessary reports and documents required under the terms of this Agreement
up to the date of termination, including the final report, and return any unspent funds
provided by the DIA pursuant hereto.

d) All remedies of whatever nature and for whatever cause provided for in this Agreement are not
exclusive but are cumulative and supplemental to all remedies available to the DIA at law or
in equity.

13.  Severability. It is the desire and intent of the parties that the provisions of this
Agreement be enforced to the fullest extent permissible under the law and public policies applied in
each jurisdiction in which enforcement is sought. Accordingly, in the event that any provision of this
Agreement would be held in any jurisdiction to be invalid, prohibited or unenforceable for any reason,
such provision, as to such jurisdiction, shall be ineffective, without invalidating the remaining
provisions of this Agreement or affecting the validity or enforceability of such provision in any other
jurisdiction. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if such provision could be more narrowly drawn so as
not to be invalid, prohibited or unenforceable in such jurisdiction, it shall, as to such jurisdiction, be
so narrowly drawn, without invalidating the remaining provisions of this Agreement or affecting the
validity or enforceability of such provision in any other jurisdiction.

14. Notices. Any notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement will
be sufficient if furnished in writing, personally delivered, delivered by courier or sent by registered
mail (return receipt requested and postage prepaid), in each case addressed to the parties at their
respective addresses indicated below, or at such other address as any party shall have specified by
notice given in accordance herewith.

If to DVI: Downtown Vision, Inc.
214 N. Hogan St., Suite 120
Jacksonville, Florida 32202



Attn: Jacob Gordon

If to the DIA: Downtown Investment Authority
117 West Duval Street, Suite 310
Jacksonville, Florida 32202
Attn: Chief Executive Officer

With a copy to: Office of General Counsel
117 West Duval Street, Suite 480
Jacksonville, Florida 32202
Attn: Corporation Secretary

15. Reserved.

16. Unauthorized Workers. The employment by DVI of unauthorized aliens is a
violation of Section 274A(e) of the Federal Immigration and Naturalization Act and Section 448.095,
Florida Statutes, and a material breach of this Agreement, and DIA may unilaterally cancel this
Agreement upon fifteen (15) days’ prior written notice of such cancellation. DVI shall utilize the
U.S. Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all
new employees hired by DVI during the Term. DVI shall require any contractors or subcontractors
performing any part of the Services to comply with this provision and shall incorporate this obligation
in any subcontracts. The DIA shall be entitled to any and all relief available, including but not limited
to, consequential damages, rebate of fees, costs and expenses, etc., resulting from the voiding or
canceling of this Agreement due to a violation of this section.

17. Force Majeure. If the performance by either party hereunder is delayed or prevented
at any time due to circumstances beyond the control of such party; including, without limitation, those
resulting from labor disputes, fire, floods, natural disasters, riots, blackouts, civil disturbances,
weather conditions, restrictions imposed by or control exercised by a governmental entity,
unavoidable casualties or acts of God, acts of terror, acts of a public enemy, or a shortage of or
inability to obtain materials, equipment or labor, the performance of such party shall be excused until
such condition no longer exists. Either party claiming an event of Force Majeure under this Section
shall notify the other party hereto within ten (10) days of the occurrence of the Force Majeure event.
The party whose performance is delayed or prevented as described in this Section 17 shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to eliminate or modify any force majeure condition.

18. DIA Required Provisions.

a) Indemnification. DVI shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the DIA, its
directors, officers, agents, representatives and employees, from and against any
damages, liabilities, losses and costs; including, but not limited to, reasonable
attorneys’ fees, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness or intentionally
wrongful conduct of DVI or its employees, agents, subcontractors or other persons
employed or utilized by DVI in the performance of this Agreement or the work
performed hereunder. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver or
limitation of the DIA’s rights accorded by the Florida Constitution as codified in




b)

d)

Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. The scope and terms of the indemnity obligations
herein described are separate and apart from, and shall not be limited by, any
insurance provided pursuant to this Agreement or otherwise. Such terms of
indemnity shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Representations. DVI represents and warrants that its employees, contractors and
subcontractors in performing its obligations under this Agreement shall exercise
the degree of skill and care required by customarily accepted good practices and
procedures in performing such services and activities consistent with the prevailing
standards of the industry.

Insurance. DVI shall coordinate with the City’s Office of Special Events and Parks,
Recreation and Community Services Division to obtain the applicable use and
special events permits, and shall comply with the insurance requirements as set
forth therein.

Retention of Records/Audit. As required by Section 126.108(a), DIA of
Jacksonville Ordinance Code, DVI and each of its respective subcontractors shall
maintain all business records directly pertinent to the performance of this
Agreement (“Records”) and shall make such Records available at all reasonable
times for examination by the DIA during the Term of this Agreement and for three
(3) years from the date of final payment under this Agreement during DV I’s regular
business hours.

Compliance with Laws. As required by Section 126.108(b), DIA of Jacksonville
Ordinance Code, DVI must comply with any and all federal, state, and local laws,
rules, regulations, and ordinances, as the same exist and may be amended from time
to time, applicable to DVI. Such laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances may
include, but are not limited to, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes (the Florida Public
Records Law) and Section 286.011, Florida Statutes (the Florida Sunshine Law),
as they apply to this Agreement, and also Chapter . If any of the obligations of DVI
under this Agreement are to be performed by a subcontractor, DVI must ensure that
the provisions of this Section shall be incorporated into and become a part of the
subcontract.

Non-discrimination. As required by Section 126.404, City of Jacksonville
Ordinance Code, DVI represents that it has adopted, and will maintain throughout
the Term of this Agreement, a policy of nondiscrimination or non-harassment
against any person with regard to race, color, sex (including pregnancy), sexual
orientation, gender identity or expression, religion, political affiliation, national
origin, disability, age, marital status, veteran status, or any other impermissible
factor in recruitment, hiring, compensation, training, placement, promotion,
discipline, demotion, transfers, layoff, recall, termination, working conditions, and
related terms and conditions of employment. DVI agrees that, on written request,
it will permit reasonable access to its records of employment, employment
advertisement, application forms and other pertinent data and records, by the




9)

h)

Executive Director of the Jacksonville Human Rights Commission, or successor
agency or commission, for the purpose of investigation to ascertain compliance
with the nondiscrimination provisions of this Agreement; provided however, that
DVI shall not be required to produce, for inspection, records covering periods of
time more than one (1) year prior to the Effective Date. DVI agrees that if any of
the Services to be provided pursuant to this Agreement are to be performed by a
subcontractor, the provisions of this Section shall be incorporated into and become
a part of the subcontract.

Contract Managers. Each party will designate a Contract Manager during the Term
whose responsibility shall be to oversee the party’s performance of its duties and
obligations pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. As of the Effective Date, the
DIA’s Contract Manager is John Crescimbeni, 117 West Duval Street, Suite 310,
Jacksonville, Florida 32202, jcrescimbeni@coj.net and DVI’s Contract Manager is
Eric Miller, 214 N. Hogan Street, #120, Jacksonville, Florida 32202
eric@downtownjacksonville.com. Each party shall provide prompt written notice
to the other party of any changes to the party’s Contract Manager or his or her
contact information.

Authority; No Conflict. DVI represents that it is a duly incorporated and validly
existing entity. DVI is authorized to conduct business and is in good standing in
the State of Florida. DVI has full power and authority to execute and deliver this
Agreement and all documents contemplated by this Agreement, and to perform its
contractual obligations. Entering into this Agreement will not conflict with or result
in a breach of any other agreement to which DV1 is a party. The individual signing
on behalf of DVI has full power and authority to do so, and DVI shall deliver to the
DIA promptly upon request all documents reasonably requested by the DIA to
evidence that authority. The making, execution and delivery of this Agreement and
performance of all contractual obligations by DVI have been duly authorized and
approved by all necessary company action of DVI.

Public Records. All documents, data and other records received by the DIA in
connection with this Agreement are public records and available for public
inspection unless specifically exempt by law. DVI shall allow public access to all
documents, data and other records made or received by DV1 in connection with this
Agreement unless the records are exempt from Section 249(a) of Article | of the
Florida Constitution or subsection 119.07(1), Florida Statutes. The DIA may
unilaterally terminate this Agreement if DVI refuses to allow public access as
required under this Agreement.

If DVI believes that any portion of any documents, data or other records submitted
to the DIA in connection with this Agreement are exempt from disclosure under
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, the Florida Constitution and related laws (“Elorida’s
Public Records Laws”), the party claiming the exemption must: (1) clearly
segregate and mark the specific sections of the document, data and records as
“Confidential”, (2) cite the specific Florida Statute or other legal authority for the
asserted exemption, and (3) provide the DIA with a separate redacted copy of the



mailto:jcrescimbeni@coj.net

documents, data, or records (the “Redacted Copy”). The Redacted Copy shall
contain the DIA’s contract name and number, and shall be clearly titled “Redacted
Copy”. DVI should only redact those portions of records that DVI claims are
specifically exempt from disclosure under Florida’s Public Records Laws. If the
party claiming an exemption fails to submit a redacted copy of documents, data, or
other records it claims is confidential, the DIA is authorized to produce all
documents, data, and other records submitted to the DIA in answer to a public
records request for these records.

In the event of a public records or other disclosure request under Florida’s Public
Records Laws or other authority to which DVI’s documents, data or records are
responsive, the DIA will provide the Redacted Copy to the requestor. If a requestor
asserts a right to any redacted information, the DIA will notify DVI that such an
assertion has been made. It is the responsibility of the party claiming the exemption
to respond to the requestor to assert that the information in question is exempt from
disclosure under applicable law. If the DIA becomes subject to a demand for
discovery or disclosure of the redacted information under legal process, the DIA
shall give DVI prompt notice of the demand prior to releasing the redacted
information (unless otherwise prohibited by applicable law). The party claiming the
exemption shall be responsible for defending its determination that the redacted
portion(s) of the information are not subject to disclosure.

The party claiming the exemption shall protect, defend, and indemnify the DIA
from and against all claims, demands, actions, suits, damages, liabilities, losses,
settlements, judgments, costs, and expenses (including, but not limited to,
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs) arising from or relating to the assertion that
all or any portion of its information is not subject to disclosure.

In accordance with Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, DVI shall:

€)) Keep and maintain public records required by the DIA to perform
the Services under this Agreement; and

(b) Upon request from the DIA’s custodian of public records, provide
the DIA with a copy of the requested records or allow records to be inspected or
copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided for
in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law; and

(c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and
exempt from public records disclosure requirements, including medical records, are
not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the Term of this
Agreement and following termination of this Agreement if DVI does not transfer
the records to the DIA; and

(d) Upon termination of this Agreement, transfer to the DIA at no cost
all public records in possession of DV or keep and maintain public records required
by the DIA to perform the Services required under this Agreement. If DVI transfers
all public records to the DIA upon termination of this Agreement, DV shall destroy



any duplicate public records remaining in its possession that are confidential or
exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If DVI keeps and maintains
public records upon completion of this Agreement, DVI shall meet all applicable
requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be
provided to the DIA upon request from the DIA’s custodian of public records in a
format that is compatible with its information technology systems.

The above requirements apply to DVI to the extent it is a “Contractor” as defined
in Section, 119.0701, Florida Statutes.

IF RECIPIENT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO ITS
DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS
AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CITY’S CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC
RECORDS AT (904) 255-7674, PRRGOVOA@COJ.NET; CITY OF
JACKSONVILLE, PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST, 214 N. HOGAN
STREET, SUITE 1180, JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA 32202.

19.  Waiver Not Consent. Any waiver of any breach of this Agreement by a party hereto
shall not be construed to be a continuing waiver or consent to any subsequent breach by such party.

20.  Assignment. No party hereto may assign its rights or delegate its obligations under
this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the other party.

21. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be enforceable in accordance with its terms by
the parties hereto and shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, the parties hereto and their
respective successors and permitted assigns. Nothing in this Agreement shall confer any rights or
benefits upon any person other than the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted
assigns.

22. Exclusive Jurisdiction and Venue. Venue for any litigation, legal action or other
proceeding brought for the interpretation or enforcement of this Agreement, or because of a dispute
or alleged breach or default in connection with any provision of this Agreement, shall lie solely in the
state courts of the State of Florida located in Duval County, Florida. The parties hereby: (a) consent
to personal jurisdiction and venue in such courts; (b) agree that such courts shall have exclusive
jurisdiction over any matters arising out of or related to this Agreement; (c) acknowledge and agree
that they will accept service of process by registered or certified mail, or the equivalent, directed to
their last known address as determined by the other party or parties or by whatever other means are
permitted by such courts; and (d) waive all claims to the effect that any of the aforementioned courts
constitute an inconvenient forum.

23. Governing Law; Construction. This Agreement and the legal relations between the
parties hereto shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the
State of Florida and applicable federal law, without regard to any conflict or choice-of-law rule or
principle that would refer the governance, construction or enforcement of this Agreement to the laws



mailto:PRRGOVQA@COJ.NET

of another jurisdiction. The parties agree that the language, terms and conditions in this Agreement
are not to be construed in any way against or in favor of any party hereto by reason of the
responsibilities of the parties in connection with the preparation of this Agreement.

24. Entire _Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement supersedes any prior or
contemporaneous agreements or understandings, oral or written, with respect to the subject matter
hereof and contains the entire understanding and agreement among the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof. This Agreement may not be altered, modified or amended except by a
subsequent written agreement entered into by the parties hereto.

25. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and
each such counterpart shall be deemed to be an original document, but all such counterparts together
shall constitute one and the same agreement. Delivery of an executed counterpart of this Agreement
by facsimile or other electronic transmission (including PDF) shall have the same force and effect as
delivery of a manually executed counterpart of this Agreement.

26. Purchase Order; DIA Authority. The parties acknowledge that the DIA has
issued a Purchase Order (the “Purchase Order”) to pay for the Services provided hereunder. To
the extent of a conflict between the terms of the Purchase Order and this Agreement, this
Agreement shall control. The DIA is authorized to enter into this Agreement pursuant to DIA
Resolution 2023-10-05.

(The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank by the parties. Signhature page to immediately follow.)



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have entered into this Agreement as of the
Effective Date.

DOWNTOWN VISION, INC.
By:

.Jacob Gordon
Chief Executive Officer

DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

By:
Lori N. Boyer
Chief Executive Officer

Encumbrance and funding information for internal DIA use:
Amount......................554,000.00

In accordance with Section 24.103(e) of the Ordinance Code of the DIA of Jacksonville, | do
hereby certify that there is an unexpended, unencumbered and unimpounded balance in the
appropriation sufficient to cover the foregoing Agreement; provided however, this certification is
not nor shall it be interpreted as an encumbrance of funding under this Agreement. Actual
encumbrance(s) shall be made by subsequent purchase order(s) as specified in said Agreement.

Director of Finance

DIA Contract Number:

Purchase Order Number:
FORM APPROVED:

By:

Office of General Counsel

GC-#1597552-v1-_FY_2023-24_DVI_Sip__Stroll_Agreement.docx

10



EXHIBIT A
Scope of Services and Schedule of Fees

Sip & Stroll Program — DIA Park Programming Scope of Work

Request: Downtown Vision, Inc. (DVI) requested $54,000 in funding from DIA to support its
Sip & Stroll program (“SS”), which will be utilized to pay for musical talent and associated
expenses for staging, sound and lighting, security, signage and supplies and additional activation
expenses at the year-long program series.

Amount Approved by Board: $54,000

Source of Funds: SS-CRA-Parks-and-ProgrammingDIA Administrative Budget Event Contribution

Eligible uses of funds:

SS production expenses eligible for reimbursement by DIA (Eligible Expenses) include:
e Musical talent fees
e Musical production expenses, including lighting, staging, and attendee seating
® Security fees
® Signage and supplies
e Additional activation expenses, including artistic seating, interactive art, street theater
fees, digital sculpture, ambiance lighting
Timing of Payments:

Fwe-Three payments will be made- one upon completion of the first three events, one following
the September event,-#r-theseries-and one at the end of the series.

Documentation required to support payment request:

Payment One- A payment of $27,000.00 upon evidence of completion of the first three events
(Nov-Jan). The amount of the initial payment is fixed at $27,000 regardless of the total of paid
invoices to date.

Payment Two - a payment of ten thousand eight hundred dollars ($10,800) shall be payable
following the completion of the May 2024 and September 2024 events due within thirty (30) days
of written request from DVI.

Payment Three - a final payment of sixteen thousand two hundred dollars ($16,200) shall be
payable following the completion of the final event within the amended 2023-2024 agreement

due within thirty (30) days of written request from DVI. RaymentTFwe-A-paymentnotto-exceed

11



EXHIBIT B

AUDIT REQUIREMENTS

The following audit requirements are in addition and supplemental to any other audit requirements
contained in this Agreement:

1. DVI shall establish and maintain books, records, contracts, subcontracts, papers, financial
records, supporting documents, statistical records, goods, services, and all other documents (the
“Records”) in a format sufficient to reflect all receipts and expenditures of the DIA funds.

2. DVI shall retain all Records pertinent to this Agreement for a period of three (3) years after
final disbursement of the DIA funds. If an audit has been initiated and audit findings have not
been resolved at the end of three (3) years, the Records shall be retained, at no cost to the DIA,
until resolution of the audit findings or any litigation based on the terms of this Agreement.
Records shall be retained for longer periods when any retention period required by law exceeds
the time frames required in this paragraph.

3. Upon demand, at no additional cost to the DIA, DVI shall facilitate the duplication and
transfer of any Records during the applicable retention period.

4. DVI shall provide the Records at all reasonable times for inspection, review, copying, or
audit by the DIA, the City of Jacksonville’s Council Auditor’s Office, the Office of Inspector
General, the State of Florida, or their authorized third-party auditors or designees.

5. At all reasonable times for as long as DVI maintains the Records, DVI shall allow persons
authorized by the DIA to have full access to and the right to examine any of the Records, regardless
of the form in which kept.

6. DVI shall comply and cooperate immediately with any inspections, reviews, or
investigations deemed necessary by the DIA.

7. DVI shall permit the DIA to interview any of DVI’s employees, contractors, and
subcontractors’ employees to assure the DIA of the satisfactory performance pursuant to any
agreement between DVI and the DIA. Following such review, if DVI’s performance is, in the
opinion of the DIA, deficient, the DIA will deliver to DVI a written report of the deficiencies and
request for DVI’s development of a corrective action plan. DVI agrees to prepare and submit to
the DIA a corrective plan within five (5) business days of receiving the DIA’s written report. DVI

12



shall correct all deficiencies identified in the corrective action plan within five (5) business days
from the DIA’s receipt of the corrective action plan.

8. All reports, audits, and other information DV provides pursuant to this Agreement shall
contain the following statement: “The information provided to the DIA of Jacksonville in this
submittal is submitted under penalties of perjury, under Section 837.06, Florida Statutes”.

9. If DVI uses any contractors or subcontractors in utilization of the DIA funds, DVI shall
include the audit, inspections, investigations, and record-keeping requirements providing herein in
all such subcontracts and assignments. DVI shall also ensure any subrecipients of DIA funds, if
any, are subject to the audit, inspections, investigations, reporting and record-keeping requirements
provided herein and said requirements shall be included in any contract with any subrecipient.

13



II.

III.

EXHIBIT B
TO RESOLUTION 2024-06-11

SCOPE OF WORK AND PAYMENT TERMS
SIP AND STROLL

Purpose and Overview: Downtown Vision, Inc. (“DVI”), a not-for-profit business
improvement district in Downtown Jacksonville, operates with the mission to build and
maintain and healthy and vibrant Downtown Jacksonville and to promote Downtown as
an exciting place to live, work, visit, and invest. DVI works in close coordination with
the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) and other City of Jacksonville (“City”)
agencies to support the shared goals for Downtown’s improvement and activation, as
stated in the DIA’s Community Redevelopment Area Plan and Business Investment and
Development Strategy. In furtherance of those goals, DVI launched and has since
produced the Sip and Stroll event series (“Sip and Stroll”) in 2021, which programs an
approximately one-half mile stretch of the Southbank Riverwalk with artists, vendors,
concessions, and other activations on the third Thursday of specified months. DVI
requests, and DIA has agreed to provide, up to thirty-six thousand dollars ($36,000)
(“DIA Support”) from the DIA to support Sip and Stroll for a period extending from
January 1, 2025 through September 30, 2025, which will include five (5) individual
events barring cancellation due to weather. These funds will be paid and invested
according to the following schedule and terms.

Term and Project Schedule: The DIA Support shall be invested in the production of five
(5) individual Sip and Stroll events occurring on the third Thursday of each month during
a term extending from January 1, 2025 through September 30, 2025 (“Term”), in
accordance with the below schedule (“Project Schedule”). The total number of events
and/or the Project Schedule may be impacted due to inclement weather cancellations,
which shall not impact DVI’s access to the full amount of the DIA Support or the
Payment Terms and Schedule included in Paragraph IV of this Exhibit.

Project Schedule
a. January 16, 2025;
b. February 20, 2025;
March 20, 2025;
April 17, 2025
May 15, 2025; and
September 18, 2025

o Ao

Allowable Expenses: The DIA Support shall be expended on or provided as
reimbursement for the following expenses in support of Sip and Stroll during the Term
(“Allowable Expenses”):

a. Musical and other artistic programming expenses;

b. Lighting, staging, audio-visual, or other production expenses;

c. Restroom facilities, barricades, or other event infrastructure expenses;

d. Event marketing expenses; and



Page 20f 2

e. Security or other emergency personnel expenses.

IV. Payment Terms and Schedule: Payment of the DIA Support will be made according to
the following schedule:

a. A payment of eighteen thousand dollars (318,000) shall payable following the
completion of the first three events within the agreement (January, February, and
March) not to exceed six thousand dollars ($6,000) per event, due within thirty
(30) days of a written request from DVI.

b. A final payment of eighteen thousand dollars ($18,000) shall be payable
following the completion of the final event within the Term, not to exceed six
thousand dollars ($6,000) per event, due within thirty (30) days of a written
request from DVI and a report detailing the expenditure of at least thirty-six
thousand dollars (336,000) on Allowable Expenses for the months of January,
February, March, April, May, and September of 2025.

V.  Reporting: by October 30, 2025, DVI shall submit to the DIA a final report summarizing
marketing efforts and operations related to the production of Sip and Stroll during the
Term.



TABIV.C
RESOLUTION 2024-06-14 CATHEDRAL DISTRICT JAX CONTRIBUTION



AvaH
Cross-Out


RESOLUTION 2024-06-14

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
AUTHORIZING A FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLAR ($15,000)
CONTRIBUTION TO CATHEDRAL DISTRICT-JAX FOR
INSTALLATION OF GATEWAY MARKERS TO BE PAID OUT OF THE
DOWNTOWN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND SUBSIDIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS ACTIVITY; AUTHORIZING THE CEO TO TAKE
ALL ACTIONS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSE OF
THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the mission of the DIA is, “To drive growth in business and investment,
create a vibrant urban living environment and enhance quality of life in Downtown Jacksonville
through the transparent and responsible leveraging of public investments, assets, infrastructure,
and policy”; and

WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) has received a request from
Cathedral District-Jax (“CDJ”) for a fifteen-thousand-dollar ($15,000) contribution to procure
the design, fabrication and installation of neighborhood gateway markers in Cathedral Hill in
accordance with the terms outline in Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, anchored by five historic churches, Cathedral Hill is a 36-block
neighborhood in the northeast quadrant of downtown Jacksonville. The mission of CDJ is to
revive and shepherd the redevelopment of the historic Cathedral Hill neighborhood into
Jacksonville’s newest oldest community through strategic redevelopment partnerships that
increase the residential and commercial character of the neighborhood; and

WHEREAS, developing a sense of place and identity through public art is a priority of
CDJ. CDJ has been awarded a $15,000 AARP 2024 Community Challenge Grant to install
gateway art in strategic places along the outer perimeter of the district and are now seeking
matching funds to fully fund the project; and

WHEREAS, the DIA has a desire to implement public art in a cohesive, coordinated
effort where the art aligns with the character of Downtown and its various neighborhoods, honors
the City’s history and traditions while embracing the City’s future, celebrates the City’s cultural
resources and is easily accessible, and creates rich experiences for residents and visitors; and

WHEREAS, the objectives of the gateway markers are to raise the visibility of the
neighborhood, reflect the architecture and history of the place, reinforce the district's identity and
align with current brand standards adopted by the DIA, and assist with wayfinding.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Downtown Investment Authority:

Section 1. The DIA Board hereby expressly authorizes the contribution of fifteen-
thousand dollars ($15,000) to CDJ for use in procuring the design, fabrication and installation of
neighborhood gateway markers in Cathedral Hill to be funded out of the Downtown Economic



Page 2 of 3
RESOLUTION 2024-06-14

Development Fund subsidies and contributions activity to be utilized in accordance with the
project details attached hereto as Exhibit A.

Section 2. Any installation at the intersection of Adams and Market must be
coordinated with the two-way restoration of Adams Street currently under construction, as well
as the design of the unconstrained section in that location currently under design by Baker
Design Build.

Section 3. The DIA Board hereby authorizes the CEO to take all actions necessary to
effectuate the intent of this Resolution, including entering into a contribution agreement as may
be appropriate.

Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the
Chair of the DIA Board.
WITNESS: DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
Jim Citrano, Chairman Date

VOTE: In Favor: Opposed: Abstained:



Page 3 of 3
RESOLUTION 2024-06-14

EXHIBIT A
RESOLUTION 2024-06-14
TERM SHEET

The purpose of this resolution is to authorize the use of $15,000 from the Downtown Economic
Development Fund (DEDF) subsidies and contributions activity for the Downtown Investment Authority
(DIA) to enter into a contribution agreement with Cathedral District-Jax (CDJ) for the design, fabrication
and installation of gateway markers in Cathedral Hill. The gateway markers will be comprised of four
three-dimensional (3D), ground mounted, weather resistant gateway signs, with a sponsors’ recognition
plaque to be installed in pairs (or alternatively two archways) located at two intersections: (1) Church
Street & Main Street and (2) Adams Street & Market Street.

DIA Funding Disbursement: Not more than $15,000, through the DEDF, as follows:

1. $5,000 by August 1% or by actual application deadline, should it change from August 1% in
the final project timeline. The funds will be used to retain the artist to begin work when the
contract is executed.

2. $10,000 by September 2™ or once the final artwork schematics have been completed and
approved, should this date change from September 2™ in the final project timeline. The
funds will be used for fabrication so that the artist does not have to go out of pocket for
materials.

Anticipated CDJ Project Schedule
e Application Deadline for Artist Submissions: August 1, 2024, 11:59PM EST
o Committee Review & Selection: August 5 -10, 2024
o Contract Execution by: August 15, 2024
e Final Artwork Schematics Complete: September 2, 2024
e Fabrication: September 3, 2024 - November 17, 2024
e Site Prep & Install: November 18 - December 8, 2024
e Grand Opening Dedication Ceremony for artwork: TBD - Slated for week of December
9,2024

DIA Conditions

A. CDJ must include a designee from the DIA to sit on the art selection committee.

B. CDJ must provide a copy of the executed artist contract(s) to the DIA.

C. Any installation at the intersection of Adams and Market must be coordinated with the two-way
restoration of Adams Street currently under construction, as well as the design of the
unconstrained section in that location currently under design by Baker Design Build.

D. Artwork must be reflective of the defining characteristics of Cathedral Hill and align with current
brand standards adopted by the DIA.



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

RESOLUTION 2024-06-14 CATHEDRAL DISTRICT JAX CONTRIBUTION —
CDJ CONTRIBUTION REQUEST




2Cathedral

O N

Cathedral District-Jax, Inc.
A Community Development Corp. (CDC)

4446-1A Hendricks Avenue, #389
Jacksonville, FL 32207
www.cathedraldistrict-jax.org

Cathedral District-Jax, Inc.

is an IRS 501(c)3 and all
donations are tax deductible.
EIN 81-3283354

President/CEO

Virginia (Ginny) D. Myrick
ginny@cathedraldistrict-jax.org
Board of Directors

Sydney A. Gervin, lll, Chairman

The Very Rev. Katherine
Moorehead Carroll, Vice-Chair

Msgr. Vincent Haut, Secretary

Henry (Hank) M. Coxe
, Treasurer

Peter E. Kaplan, Real
Estate Development Chair

Tamara Baker, Community
Development Chair

Matt Brockelman
Rev. Kurt Dunkel
Tripp Gulliford

Elyse Gustafson

Ben Hakimian

John M. Henderlite Il
Allan losue

Cantrece Jones

Ted Pappas, FAIA
LeMorris Prier Sr., PharmD
Jeff Spence

Rick Stein

Advisory Board
William (Bill) B. Barnett

Robert (Rob) M. Clements

C AT HEUDI RA AL H I L L

Gateway Art — Project Details

About Cathedral District-Jax: Anchored by five historic churches,
Cathedral Hill is a 36-block neighborhood in the northeast quadrant of
downtown Jacksonville. While the area has many remaining architectural
masterpieces — from religious and civic buildings to commercial buildings
and residences — this once-vibrant neighborhood has experienced
disinvestment. The mission of Cathedral District-Jax ("CDJ") is to revive and
shepherd the redevelopment of the historic Cathedral Hill neighborhood into
Jacksonville’s newest oldest community through strategic redevelopment
partnerships that increase the residential and commercial character of the
neighborhood. Our vision is a walkable, bustling, leafy green neighborhood
that honors its historic sacred spaces as vital architectural assets. We see a
vibrant growing community with mixed-income residential units and new
schools, businesses, employment opportunities, and public art where diverse
residents can live, work, play and thrive. We are following a Master
Development Plan, elements of which were adopted by the City in 2017.

Project Description: Developing a sense of place and identity through public
art is a priority of CDJ. We have been awarded a $15,000 AARP 2024
Community Challenge Grant to install gateway art in strategic places along
the outer perimeter of the district and are now seeking matching funds to fully
fund the project. The objectives of the gateway markers are to raise the
visibility of the neighborhood, reflect the architecture and history of the place,
reinforce the district's identity, and assist with wayfinding. They also invite
community interaction as meeting and gathering points and assist with place
making within the neighborhood. CDJ’s Master Development Plan calls for
gateway art in six locations, however, our goal for this project in 2024 is to
start with two locations, specifically the intersections of Adams & Market and
Church & Main. In our grant application to AARP, we indicated that we
would do a Request for Proposal (RFP) soliciting gateway art ideas from the
artist community in Jacksonville and surrounding areas. We would then
convene a committee of residents and other stakeholders to review the artist
submissions and choose a winning design. AARP has asked that at least 50%
of the committee be people who are 50 years old or older. CDJ would also
invite a designee from the Downtown Investment Authority to sit on the
selection committee.

Gateway Artwork Description: Four three-dimensional (3D), ground
mounted, weather resistant gateway signs, with a sponsors’ recognition
plaque to be installed in pairs (or alternatively two archways) located at two

Cathedral District-Jax, Inc.'s mission is to revive and shepherd the redevelopment of the historic
Cathedral Hill into Jacksonville's newest oldest neighborhood through strategic redevelopment
partnerships that increase the residential and commercial character of the neighborhood.



intersections: (1) Church Street & Main Street and (2) Adams Street & Market Street. Artwork must
be reflective of the defining characteristics of Cathedral Hill and align with current brand standards
adopted by the Downtown Investment Authority.

Anticipated Project Timeline:

Application Deadline for Artist Submissions: August 1, 2024, 11:59PM EST

Committee Review & Selection: August 5 -10, 2024

Contract Execution by: August 15, 2024

Final Artwork Schematics Complete: September 2, 2024

Fabrication: September 3, 2024 - November 17, 2024

Site Prep & Install: November 18 - December 8, 2024

Grand Opening Dedication Ceremony for artwork: TBD - Slated for week of December 9, 2024

Funding Disbursement

1. $5,000 by August 1 or by actual application deadline, should it change from August 1 in the final
project timeline. The funds will be used to retain the artist to begin work when the contract is
executed. A copy of the executed artist contract must be provided to DIA.

2. $10,000 by September 2 or once the final artwork schematics have been completed and approved,
should this date change from September 2 in the final project timeline. The funds will be used for
fabrication so that the artist does not have to go out of pocket for materials.

Authorized Official

cé"ﬂ”( Muvmc..

Ginny Myrick

President/CEO



	R 2024-06-11_Sip & Stroll Amendment & Contribution for BOARD.pdf
	R 2024-06-11_Exhibit A.pdf
	9. Reserved.
	10. Access to Books and Records.  Until the expiration of three (3) years after the furnishing of Services under this Agreement, DIA shall make available to the DIA in connection with this Agreement, all Records as set forth on Exhibit B attached here...
	11. No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity.  The parties acknowledge that the DIA is a consolidated municipal and county political subdivision of the State of Florida. Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as a waiver of the DIA’s or Ci...
	12. Breach/Termination.
	13. Severability.  It is the desire and intent of the parties that the provisions of this Agreement be enforced to the fullest extent permissible under the law and public policies applied in each jurisdiction in which enforcement is sought.  According...
	15. Reserved.
	16. Unauthorized Workers.  The employment by DVI of unauthorized aliens is a violation of Section 274A(e) of the Federal Immigration and Naturalization Act and Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, and a material breach of this Agreement, and DIA may uni...
	17. Force Majeure.  If the performance by either party hereunder is delayed or prevented at any time due to circumstances beyond the control of such party; including, without limitation, those resulting from labor disputes, fire, floods, natural disas...
	18. DIA Required Provisions.
	19. Waiver Not Consent.  Any waiver of any breach of this Agreement by a party hereto shall not be construed to be a continuing waiver or consent to any subsequent breach by such party.
	20. Assignment.  No party hereto may assign its rights or delegate its obligations under this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the other party.
	21. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall be enforceable in accordance with its terms by the parties hereto and shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.  Nothing in t...
	22. Exclusive Jurisdiction and Venue.  Venue for any litigation, legal action or other proceeding brought for the interpretation or enforcement of this Agreement, or because of a dispute or alleged breach or default in connection with any provision of...
	23. Governing Law; Construction.  This Agreement and the legal relations between the parties hereto shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida and applicable federal law, without regard to any c...
	24. Entire Agreement; Amendments.  This Agreement supersedes any prior or contemporaneous agreements or understandings, oral or written, with respect to the subject matter hereof and contains the entire understanding and agreement among the parties wi...
	25. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and each such counterpart shall be deemed to be an original document, but all such counterparts together shall constitute one and the same agreement.  Delivery of an exec...


	R 2024-06-11_Sip & Stroll Amendment & Contribution.pdf
	R 2024-06-11_Exhibit A.pdf
	9. Reserved.
	10. Access to Books and Records.  Until the expiration of three (3) years after the furnishing of Services under this Agreement, DIA shall make available to the DIA in connection with this Agreement, all Records as set forth on Exhibit B attached here...
	11. No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity.  The parties acknowledge that the DIA is a consolidated municipal and county political subdivision of the State of Florida. Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as a waiver of the DIA’s or Ci...
	12. Breach/Termination.
	13. Severability.  It is the desire and intent of the parties that the provisions of this Agreement be enforced to the fullest extent permissible under the law and public policies applied in each jurisdiction in which enforcement is sought.  According...
	15. Reserved.
	16. Unauthorized Workers.  The employment by DVI of unauthorized aliens is a violation of Section 274A(e) of the Federal Immigration and Naturalization Act and Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, and a material breach of this Agreement, and DIA may uni...
	17. Force Majeure.  If the performance by either party hereunder is delayed or prevented at any time due to circumstances beyond the control of such party; including, without limitation, those resulting from labor disputes, fire, floods, natural disas...
	18. DIA Required Provisions.
	19. Waiver Not Consent.  Any waiver of any breach of this Agreement by a party hereto shall not be construed to be a continuing waiver or consent to any subsequent breach by such party.
	20. Assignment.  No party hereto may assign its rights or delegate its obligations under this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the other party.
	21. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall be enforceable in accordance with its terms by the parties hereto and shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns.  Nothing in t...
	22. Exclusive Jurisdiction and Venue.  Venue for any litigation, legal action or other proceeding brought for the interpretation or enforcement of this Agreement, or because of a dispute or alleged breach or default in connection with any provision of...
	23. Governing Law; Construction.  This Agreement and the legal relations between the parties hereto shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida and applicable federal law, without regard to any c...
	24. Entire Agreement; Amendments.  This Agreement supersedes any prior or contemporaneous agreements or understandings, oral or written, with respect to the subject matter hereof and contains the entire understanding and agreement among the parties wi...
	25. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and each such counterpart shall be deemed to be an original document, but all such counterparts together shall constitute one and the same agreement.  Delivery of an exec...


	Blank Page
	Blank Page



